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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Board of Trustees
Delaware State University
Dover, Delaware
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
discretely presented component unit of Delaware State University (the University) (a component unit of
the State of Delaware), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audits. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Delaware State University Foundation, Inc., the discretely
presented component unit of the University (the Foundation), for the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based solely on the report of
the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the Foundation were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinion
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of the University as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
and the respective change in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 11 to the financial statements, the University implemented the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for the year ended June 30, 2018, which
represents a change in accounting principle. As of July 1, 2017, the University’s net position was
restated to reflect the impact of adoption. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability,
Schedule of Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability, and Schedules of Contributions as listed in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6,
2018, on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
December 6, 2018
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
(UNAUDITED)

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of Delaware State University’s (the University) financial
statements provides an overview of the University’s financial activities for the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, with comparative amounts for 2016. Management has prepared the financial
statements and the related footnote disclosures along with this discussion and analysis. Responsibility
for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the preparer. This discussion and
analysis contains financial activities of Delaware State University only (exclusive the component unit).
Financial Highlights:


The University’s total net position decreased by $10.8 million or (11.2%), prior to restatement, to
($107.2) million as of June 30, 2018 and by $2.7 million or 2.2% to $121 million as of June 30,
2017.



During fiscal year 2015, the University implemented GASB No. 68, which resulted in a
$36.1 million liability in fiscal year 2018 compared to a $38.3 million liability in fiscal year 2017.



During fiscal year 2018, the University implemented GASB No. 75, which resulted in a
$198.7 million liability in the fiscal year 2018.



For fiscal year 2018, the University’s operating expenses were $58.1 million greater than the
operating revenue and $52.8 million greater than the operating revenue for fiscal year 2017.



In fiscal years 2018 and 2017, State appropriations were 26.0% and 26.9%, respectively, of
total operating expenses.



As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, debt as a percentage of net capital assets was 49.2% and
49.9%, respectively.



Total net position as a ratio of total operating expenses was (0.78) times and 0.91 times for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.



For fiscal years 2018 and 2017, debt as a percentage of net position was (94.1%) and 96.9%,
respectively.



For fiscal years 2018 and 2017, unrestricted net position as a percentage of total net position
was (219%) and (2.4%), respectively.
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Graphically displayed, the comparative net position balances by category and fiscal year, follow:
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The following chart provides a graphical breakdown of revenue by category for the fiscal years ended
June 30:
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Significant financial highlights for fiscal year 2018 are as follows:
The University’s overall financial position decreased in 2018 by $228.6 million.
Total revenue decreased $4.5 million in fiscal year 2018, primarily due to a decrease in government
grants and contracts of $.8 million and $3.7 million in capital grants. Tuition decreased by $.5 million,
and the residence facilities held an occupancy rate of 99%, other operating revenue increased by
$.7 million.
Operating expenses reflects an increase of $4.6 million due to changes in proportionate share of
pension costs related to GASB 68, implementing GASB 75, increased salary and OEC due to a fully
funding the prior year mid-year increase of $750 or 1.5% which ever was more and CBA agreements,
contractual agreements for snow removal, and depreciation.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses increased in fiscal year 2018 by $.5 million. Increases are noted
in Pell Grant revenue of $.1 million, investment income decrease $1.0 million and a decrease in interest
expense $.6 million.
Other revenue decreased $3.2 million due to a decrease in State Minor Capital Improvement funds.
Significant financial highlights for fiscal year 2017 are as follows:
The University’s overall financial position decreased by $2.7 million in fiscal year 2017.
Revenue decreased $1.4 million in fiscal year 2017, primarily due to a decrease in government grants
and contracts of $3.1 million. However, the offset was due to an increase in tuition by $2.7 million, the
residence facilities held an occupancy rate of 99%, and an increase in capital grants and gifts of
$3.7 million.
Operating expenses reflects an increase of $6.6 million due to increases in pension costs related to
GASB 68, increased salary and OEC due to a mid-year increase of $750 or 1% which ever was more
and CBA agreements, contractual agreements for snow removal, and depreciation.
Nonoperating revenues increased in fiscal year 2017 by $2.1 million. Increases are denoted in State
appropriation, investment income, and Pell grants.
Other revenue increased $2.3 million primarily due to a capital gift of land from the State of Delaware.
Using this Discussion and Analysis
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the University’s basic financial
statements. This report consists of three basic financial statements: the statement of net position; the
statement of revenue, expenses, and change in net position; and the statement of cash flows. These
three statements provide information on the University as a whole. Consistent with the types of
programs and services generally associated with higher education institutions, the University has
classified its operating expenses into the following categories: instructional, organized research, public
service, academic support, student services, institutional support, operation and maintenance of plant
and auxiliary enterprises.
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The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net
Position
One of the most important questions asked about the University’s finances is, “is Delaware State
University as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The statement of net
position and the statement of revenue, expenses, and change in net position report information on the
University as a whole and on its activities in a way that helps answer this question. When revenue and
other support exceed expenses, the result is an increase in net position. When the opposite occurs, the
result is a decrease in net position. The relationship between operating revenue plus noncapital state
appropriations and expenses may be thought of as Delaware State University’s operating results taken
as a whole.
Delaware State University’s net position and related change in net position is one way to measure the
University’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the University’s
net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving. However, several nonfinancial
factors are relevant as well, such as the trend and quality of student applicants, freshman class size,
student retention, physical plant condition, and campus safety, to assess the overall health of the
University.
The aforementioned statements include all assets and liabilities of the University using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is the same accounting method used by private-sector institutions. Under
this method of accounting, all of the current year’s resources, obligations, revenue, and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Statements of Net Position
2018
NET POSITION
Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

$

Deferred Outflows
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

2017

2016

13,516,755
252,008,114
265,524,869

$ 17,794,984
256,059,103
273,854,087

$ 23,376,667
258,177,526
281,554,193

23,045,299

21,104,368

4,225,900

15,438,315
349,608,253
365,046,568

14,948,507
156,813,878
171,762,385

14,654,738
141,413,913
156,068,651

30,718,428

1,829,791

5,640,380

121,724,415
5,577,840
(234,497,083)
(107,194,828)
$ (228,561,107)
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122,499,419
1,825,164
(2,958,304)
$ 121,366,279

121,945,514
3,270,857
(1,145,309)
$ 124,071,062

$

$

(2,704,783)

3,249,046
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Significant changes in the 2018 net position, compared to 2017, follow:
 Current assets decreased by $4.3 million. The decrease was due to an overall decrease in cash
and a decrease in government grants receivable.


Noncurrent assets decreased by $4.0 million, primarily due to removal of one residence hall
(Laws Hall) and site work for the preparation of a new residence hall and P3 project net of
annual depreciation expense.



Deferred outflows increased by $1.9 million as a net result of decrease in GASB No. 68 $3.4 an
increase due to the implementation of GASB 75 $5.4.



Current liabilities increased by $0.5 million, primarily due to increases in accounts payable and
accrued employee compensation offset by decreases in grants that were deferred and
compensated absences.



Long-term liabilities increased by $192.8 million, due to decrease in net pension liability of
$2.2 million as required by GASB No. 68, a $3.9 million decrease due to payment of long-term
obligations and an increase of $198.7 in OPEB liability due to the implementation of GASB 75.



Deferred inflows increased by $28.9 million due to the changes related to the net pension
liability as required by GASB No. 68 $.4 million, implementation of GASB 75 $27.7 million and
changes in deferred grant inflows $.8 million.

Significant changes in the 2017 net position, compared to 2016, follow:
 Current assets decreased by $5.6 million. The decrease was due reduction in grant receivables
(an increase in expenditures for a variety of capital improvement projects) and funds available
from the State Treasurer.


Noncurrent assets decreased by $2.1 million, primarily due to completing major renovations
within academic buildings (roofing, HVAC, renovation of the Baker Building) and the refinancing
of the series 207 revenue bonds which necessitated a transfer of $3.6 million from Assets held in
trust to fully fund the refinance project.



Deferred outflows increased by $16.9 million as a result of GASB No. 68 and a net loss on the
refunding of the Series 2007 Bonds.



Current liabilities decreased by $.3 million, primarily due to payment of vendors, grants that were
deferred and compensated absences.



Long-term liabilities increased by $15.4 million, due to increase in net pension liability of
$21.3 million as required by GASB No. 68, offset by a $5.9 million decrease due to payments of
long term obligations.



Deferred inflows decreased by $3.8 million due to changes related to the net pension liability as
required by GASB No.68.
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Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
2018

2017

2016

30,639,208
19,376,864
296,218
24,938,687
4,898,610
80,149,587

$ 31,171,796
20,187,909
266,095
25,003,658
4,240,871
80,870,329

$ 28,359,570
23,281,804
239,072
25,034,223
7,690,655
84,605,324

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instructional
Organized Research
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Depreciation
Student Aid
Auxiliary Enterprises
Total Operating Expenses

45,176,158
12,361,098
3,131,264
4,927,424
14,029,519
17,358,455
9,137,472
9,663,033
4,944,176
17,550,741
138,279,340

46,638,078
10,933,520
2,590,995
4,851,615
15,003,479
16,072,193
6,133,433
11,532,302
4,615,569
15,280,981
133,652,165

39,805,628
11,992,934
2,384,215
4,424,394
15,131,145
13,903,297
8,335,291
10,737,402
4,487,381
15,896,485
127,098,172

OPERATING LOSS

(58,129,753)

(52,781,836)

(42,492,848)

42,327,530

41,812,144

39,741,894

5,050,552

8,264,909

6,000,000

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

(10,751,671)

(2,704,783)

3,249,046

Net Position - Beginning of Year - As Previously
Reported

121,366,279

OPERATING REVENUE
Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Scholarship
Allowance of $22.8, $20.5, and $21.2)
Government Grants and Contracts
Sales and Services of Educational Departments
Auxiliary Enterprises
Other Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

$

NONOPERATING REVENUE
OTHER REVENUE

Restatement - Adoption of GASB 75

124,071,062

120,822,016

(217,809,436)

-

-

(96,443,157)

124,071,062

120,822,016

$ (107,194,828)

$ 121,366,279

$ 124,071,062

Net Position - Beginning of Year - As Restated
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR
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Significant changes in revenue for fiscal year 2018 are as follows:
 The University experienced a slight increase in its scholarship program in 2018. Net student
revenue includes scholarship allowances of $22.8 million in fiscal year 2018 compared to
$20.5 million in fiscal year 2017.


Government grants and contracts decreased in fiscal 2018 by $.8 million, principally from a
decrease in several federally funded grant awards.



Auxiliary enterprise revenue stayed approximately the same in fiscal year 2018 as a result of
99% occupancy across the majority of residence facilities compared to 99% occupancy in 2017.



Nonoperating revenue (expense) increased by $.5 million. This is due primarily to changes in
interest expense offset by slight increases in other revenues

Significant changes in revenue for fiscal year 2017 are as follows:


The University experienced a slight decrease in its scholarship program in 2017. Net student
revenue includes scholarship allowances of $20.5 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to
$21.2 million in fiscal year 2016.



Government grants and contracts decreased in fiscal 2017 by $3.1 million, principally from a
decrease in several federally funded grant awards.



Auxiliary enterprise revenue stayed approximately the same in fiscal year 2017 as a result of
99% occupancy across the majority of residence facilities compared to 99% occupancy in 2016.

Significant changes in expenses for fiscal year 2018 are as follows:


Instructional expenses decreased by $1.5 million primarily due to changes in pension and
OPEB costs, the ratification of the CBA which included mandated salary increases spread over
a three-year period.



Student services and auxiliary enterprise expenses increased $1.3 million during the year.



Operational and maintenance expenses increased by $3.0 million due increased repairs and
maintenance costs.



Institutional expenses increased by $1.3 million.
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Significant changes in expenses for fiscal year 2017 are as follows:
 Instructional expenses increased by $6.8 million primarily due to increase cost in pension and
health care and the ratification of the CBA which included mandated salary increases.


Student services and auxiliary enterprise expenses stayed approximately the same during fiscal
year 2017 as compared to fiscal year 2016.



Operational and maintenance expenses decreased by $2.2 million due to the expiration of
temporary contracts executed during the last quarter of fiscal year 2016 for aggressive
renovation.



Institutional expenses increased by $2.2 million due to increased salary and other employment
costs associated with the mid-year $750 or 1.5% increase as authorized by the state of
Delaware.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2018, the University had $231.5 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $157.5 million ($235.9 million at June 30, 2017, net of accumulated depreciation of
$148.8 million). Depreciation charges totaled $9.7 million for the current fiscal year compared to
$11.5 million in the prior year. Details of the capital assets, net at year-end are shown below:

Land, Land Improvements, and Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Construction in Progress
Equipment
Library Materials
Total

2018
$ 19,378,529
202,635,508
516,854
8,923,059
$ 231,453,949
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Capital Assets, Net
2017
$ 20,265,967
205,382,123
1,246,468
9,050,131
$ 235,944,689

2016
$ 18,453,341
205,142,868
3,197,665
10,511,343
3,969
$ 237,309,186

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Major capital additions during fiscal year included (in millions):
Building Improvements
Building Improvements
Computer Equipment - Upgrades
Equipment
HVAC Equipment
Office Equipment
Site Infrastructure Improvements
Total

$

$

2,566,702
107,699
611,189
2,137,445
270,730
21,517
717,678
6,432,960

The University’s planned capital expenses for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, were approximately
$6.4 million. Projects planned included completing building improvements, computer equipment
upgrades, equipment, HVAC equipment, office equipment, and various deferred maintenance projects.
Other capital projects planned for fiscal 2017/2018 include site improvements for Highway 13, campus
lighting, ADA compliance upgrades, site prep for the new dormitory planned to open in Fall 2019 and
campus roadways. Detailed information about the University’s capital assets is presented in Note 4 to
the financial statements.
As of June 30, 2018, the University had $113.9 million in debt outstanding versus $117.6 million at
June 30, 2017.
On April 3, 2017, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of $42,680,000 par
value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The bonds mature between April 3,
2017 and October 1, 2039 and are secured by unappropriated gross revenue of the University. The
2017 bonds were issued as “Additional Bonds” under the indenture, secured equally and eatable with
all other Bonds issued and outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness
outstanding as provided in the indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2017 bonds,
together with other available funds, were used to refund the 2007 revenue series bonds. Series 2017
revenue bonds issued as refunding bonds, the proceeds of which were used to refund the series 2007
for a net present value savings of $3.5 million, or 7.37% of the principal refunded. The bonds bear
coupons between 3.0% and 5.0% and yield between 1.17% and 3.99%. The 2007 bonds were secured
for the construction of a new student union, a swimming pool, and a student wellness/recreation center.
As of June 30, 2018, $45,454,094 including $2,774,094 of unamortized bond premium remained
outstanding on the 2017 revenue-refunding bonds.
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On December 11, 2014, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of $29,225,000
(par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The bonds are due October 1,
2039 and are secured by unappropriated gross revenue of the University. The 2014 bonds were issued
as “Additional Bonds” under the Indenture, secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and
outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness outstanding as provided in the
Indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2014 bonds, together with other available
funds, were used to finance: (1) purchase of the University Courtyard, a 416-bed student housing
facility located on campus from the Delaware State University Housing Foundation; (2) construction,
equipping, and furnishing of an optical science center for applied research; (3) acquisition and capital
improvement of the former Sheraton Hotel and Convention Center, now known as the Living and
Learning Commons, a 264-bed student housing facility and space used by Delaware State University
Early College High School. As of June 30, 2018, $ 30,509,787 including $ 3,309,787 of unamortized
bond premium remained outstanding on the 2014 revenue bonds.
The University also entered into a loan agreement on May 28, 2015, with The Delaware Economic
Development Authority (DEDA), for funding to purchase new equipment for phase one of the Optical
Science Center for Applied Research (OSCAR) facility located on the Dover Campus, to conduct
advanced optical research. In connection with this agreement, Delaware State University agreed to pay
a 12-year note in the amount of $3,000,000. There is no interest on the loan. DEDA is scheduled to still
make disbursements in the amount of $1,000,000 for June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017 to the
University. The final payment of $2,000,000 was received August 2018.
On March 1, 2012, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of $32,145,000 (par
value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The proceeds of the 2012 bonds were
used to finance: (1) the refunding of certain maturities of The Delaware Economic Development
Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds (Delaware State University Project) Series 1999; (2) the purchase
of University Village, a four building, 628-bed student housing facility and dining hall located on the
campus of the University, the construction of which was financed by the Kent County, Delaware
Variable Rate Demand Student Housing Revenue Bonds (Delaware State University Student Housing
Foundation Project) Series 2004B; (3) the funding of any required reserve funds relating to the 2012
Bonds; and (4) the costs of issuance and any credit enhancement of the 2012 Bonds. As of June 30,
2018, $26,487,333 including $1,402,333 of unamortized bond premium remained outstanding on the
2012 revenue bonds.
On August 1, 2011, the University issued energy efficiency revenue bonds through the State of
Delaware Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. in the amount of $11,265,000. Through a Guaranteed Energy
Savings Agreement (GESA) with Johnson Controls, Inc., the company guarantees that there will be
sufficient savings from energy upgrades to various buildings and systems throughout the University to
cover the financing cost associated with the bond. In the event that the savings are not realized to such
level, Johnson Controls, Inc. will be responsible for any deficiency. As of June 30, 2018, $ 10,620,050
including $ 715,050 of unamortized bond premium remained outstanding on the 2011 revenue bonds.
During fiscal year 2015, the University implemented GASB No. 68, resulting in a $9.4 million net
pension liability as of June 30, 2015, which increased to $17.0 million in fiscal year 2016. For fiscal year
2017, adherence to GASB No. 68 resulted in a $38.3 million net pension liability. For fiscal year 2018,
adherence to GASB No. 68 resulted in a $36.1 million net pension liability.
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The University implemented GASB No. 75, resulting in a $198.7 million net OPEB liability as of
June 30, 2018.
The table below summarizes the amount by type of liability.

Net OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability
Notes Payable
General Obligation Bonds
Total

2018
$ 198,679,926
36,106,491
808,120
113,071,263
$ 348,665,800

Outstanding Debt
2017
$
38,263,420
1,151,271
116,464,960
$ 155,879,651

2016
$

16,953,218
1,393,291
121,808,162
$ 140,154,671

Detailed information about the University’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 5 to the financial
statements.
Summary of Operations
Although the economic condition of Delaware State University remains closely tied to the availability of
state appropriations, the administration is optimistic and has taken positive action to decrease its
dependency on state appropriation revenue which has stayed flat over the past two fiscal years
($36.0 million in fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively.) In 2016, the University invested in the
DSU@Wilmington campus and online learning (distance education). This is anticipated to have a
positive impact on future enrollment with the offering of four graduate degrees, five undergraduate
programs, and adult learning, through both face to face and distance education environments.
To further reduce the likelihood of operating deficits and gaps in state funding, University administration
is committed to reducing spending and has reduced operating budgets for fiscal year 2018. In addition,
a strategic plan has been developed to enhance the fund balance of the institution. The University will
continue to closely monitor operational revenue and expenses and maintain strong financial controls
throughout the current fiscal year.
The University’s outlook for the next five years is positive. The University has invested in online
learning, completed a $20 million campaign in 2016, and has begun a new campaign.
University Highlights
Early College High School
The Early College High School (ECHS) at Delaware State University is the state’s first public charter
early high school. Classes began on August 24, 2015 with over 300 students in its third year. Students
enrolled could earn 30-60 college credits before they graduate. The ECHS’s curriculum has a strong
emphasis in STEM (science, technology, engineering, and mathematics) and has expanded the major
offerings to include most of the degree programs offered. Each subsequent year, a grade level of
instruction will be added. In 2017/2018 the ECHS became a 9th through 12th grade charter high school.
Students attending the ECHS are expected to enroll and graduate from Delaware State University, thus
having a positive effect on enrollment.
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The University graduated its first class of Early College High School students in May of 2018. Of the 71
seniors, all have applied to continue their education at Delaware State University, approximately 60% of
graduation seniors matriculated to DSU. The Early College model has approximately a 60 – 70%
matriculation rate. The investment in the Early College High School is projected to be sustainable and
economical to the University.
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation
Delaware State University has been considered one of the Institutional Partnership (IP) Sites for the
Gates Foundation. All potential IP Sites are committed to transforming their organizations to ensure that
more students-especially low-income and first-generation students and students of color-graduate at
higher rates, with high-quality degrees or certificates at an affordable price. We believe that
transformation will be accelerated if Sites have the opportunity to learn about each other’s strengths
and growth areas in a community of peers. We’ve found that learning from each other works best when
everyone speaks a common language. An important part of speaking the same language is using a
common set of metrics to demonstrate what works with IP Sites and external audiences. The Gates
Foundation awarded the Foundation $1.2 million.
Optical Science Center for Applied Research
The construction of the new state-of-the-art Optical Science Center for Applied Research (OSCAR) is
completed. The building is the new home for DSU’s prolific Optics Program, which since 2006 has been
the recipient of $23 million in research grants, produced the University’s first two intellectual properties,
and was involved with NASA in its Mars Curiosity Rover mission. The building was made possible
initially by the support of Governor Markell, who earmarked $10 million in the fiscal 2012 budget for the
project. OSCAR will be built in three phases and will be consistent with the University’s environmental
stewardship efforts and its commitment to be a part of the Obama Administration’s Better Building
initiative. Towards those goals, OSCAR will be designed to be economical in its long-term energy
usage through the installation of radiant cooling and heating systems. The building will house eight
research laboratories, a shared nanotechnology facility, a shared wet lab, instrument room, testing and
imaging room, office spaces, conference rooms, incubator space dedicated to research and
development projects to be conducted in partnerships with high technology companies. The first of two
buildings will be a total of 28,090 square feet and three floors. Governor Jack Markell joined DSU
administrators, board members, and scientists on September 25 to formally dedicate the Delaware
Institute for Science and Technology’s Optical Science Center for Applied Research (OSCAR) Building
on campus.
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First in the World Grant
The U.S. Department of Education announced that Delaware State University has been selected
among 17 colleges and universities to be awarded funding under the First in the World grant program.
As part of that program, DSU will receive $2,647,764 that will be used in support of its Access to
Success initiative, which seeks to increase the applications, enrollment, and retention in postsecondary
education of at-risk and underrepresented students who are from low-income families and would be
first-generation college students. “A major part of the land-grant legacy of Delaware State University is
to provide access to underrepresented students,” said DSU President Harry L. Williams. “This grant
demonstrates that DSU and the Obama Administration are on the same page when it comes to better
preparing first-generation and at-risk students for higher education, as well as helping them to stay in
school and graduate.”
DSU was one of 17 recipients of the First in the World grants; and those grant awardees were selected
out of more than 300 applicant institutions.
DSU Fully Approved for Distance Learning Programs
Delaware State University recently received full approval from the Middle State Commission on Higher
Education to provide Distance Education Programs within the scope of the institution’s accreditation.
Full approval was granted to the University for Certificate Programs as well as Degrees on the
Bachelors, Masters, and Doctoral levels. The University has four Graduate and five Undergraduate
programs online for FY 2017-18.
Request for Information
The financial report is intended to provide a general overview of the University’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in the report, or requests for additional information should
be addressed to the Division of Finance, 1200 North DuPont Highway, Dover, Delaware 19901.
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Delaware State University
2018
2017
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Expendable Investments
Funds Available from State Treasurer (Cash)
Students Receivables, Net
Government Grants Receivable, Net of Allowance
of $972,822 as of June 30, 2018 and $-0- as of
June 30, 2017
Other Receivables
Due from Component Unit
Total Current Assets

$

3,208
49,380
4,339,488
3,469,309

$

2,518,531
37,812
5,392,359
3,303,362

University Foundation
2018
2017
$

4,445,236
129,910
-

$

3,911,023
164,337
-

4,487,647
991,243
176,480
13,516,755

5,645,008
803,842
94,070
17,794,984

397,794
4,972,940

970,040
5,045,400

15,448,159
4,149,850
956,156
231,453,949
252,008,114

14,678,659
4,175,569
1,260,186
235,944,689
256,059,103

15,541,259
866,607
96,427
16,504,293

14,905,275
1,067,464
117,500
16,090,239

265,524,869

273,854,087

21,477,233

21,135,639

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB
Deferred Outflows Related to Pension
Deferred Loss on Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

5,361,512
17,045,180
638,607
23,045,299

20,435,351
669,017
21,104,368

-

-

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Primary Government
Accrued Employee Compensation
Accrued Interest
Unearned Revenue
Compensated Absences
Long-Term Debt - Current Portion
Total Current Liabilities

4,540,129
4,402,806
1,167,101
1,000,954
736,827
3,590,498
15,438,315

4,160,682
166,710
3,467,154
1,231,720
1,517,513
991,582
3,413,146
14,948,507

39,663
91,654
540,428
671,745

4,570
94,000
253,076
351,646

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Compensated Absences
Net OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-Term Debt
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

4,532,951
198,679,926
36,106,491
110,288,885
349,608,253

4,342,765
38,263,420
114,207,693
156,813,878

71,176
71,176

75,376
75,376

365,046,568

171,762,385

742,921

427,022

1,745,944
27,671,918
1,300,566
30,718,428

898,056
931,735
1,829,791

-

-

121,724,415

122,499,419

-

-

4,114,731
1,463,109
-

1,707,557
117,607
-

2,263,324
8,956,667

1,575,120
9,951,395

8,268,279
1,246,042
20,734,312

8,224,094
958,008
20,708,617

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Investments
Assets Held in Trust
Other Assets
Capital Assets, Net
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Grants
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Grants and Contracts
Scholarships
Nonscholarship Benefits and Programs
Restricted Nonexpendable:
Endowment
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

(234,497,083)
$ (107,194,828)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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(2,958,304)
$ 121,366,279

$

$

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Delaware State University
2018
2017
REVENUE
Operating Revenue:
Unpledged Revenue:
Government Grants and Contracts
Revenue of University Pledged as
Security for Bonds:
Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Scholarship
Allowances of $22,825,364 and $20,452,479)
Auxiliary Enterprises
Sales and Services of Educational Departments
Athletics
Other Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

$

19,376,864

$

University Foundation
2018
2017

20,187,909

$

-

$

-

30,639,208
24,938,687
296,218
2,490,016
2,408,594
80,149,587

31,171,796
25,003,658
266,095
2,281,664
1,959,207
80,870,329

260,083
260,083

389,951
389,951

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses:
Educational and General:
Instructional
Organized Research
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Depreciation
Student Aid
Auxiliary Enterprises
Total Operating Expenses

45,176,158
12,361,098
3,131,264
4,927,424
14,029,519
17,358,455
9,137,472
9,663,033
4,944,176
17,550,741
138,279,340

46,638,078
10,933,520
2,590,995
4,851,615
15,003,479
16,072,193
6,133,433
11,532,302
4,615,569
15,280,981
133,652,165

2,023,858
2,974,180
4,998,038

2,277,730
1,559,827
3,837,557

OPERATING LOSS

(58,129,753)

(52,781,836)

(4,737,955)

(3,447,606)

35,999,006
9,770
9,922,352
393,548
402,213
(4,399,359)
42,327,530

35,967,358
21,757
8,996,227
599,797
1,241,611
(5,014,606)
41,812,144

3,817,972
337,095
608,583
4,763,650

2,569,041
339,292
1,243,117
4,151,450

(15,802,223)

(10,969,692)

25,695

703,844

5,500,000
(449,448)
5,050,552

5,500,000
3,690,000
(925,091)
8,264,909

-

-

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

(10,751,671)

(2,704,783)

25,695

703,844

NET POSITION
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously
Reported

121,366,279

124,071,062

20,708,617

20,004,773

(217,809,436)

-

-

-

(96,443,157)

124,071,062

20,708,617

20,004,773

$ (107,194,828)

$ 121,366,279

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
State Appropriations
Private Gifts
Pell Grants
Investment Income (Loss)
Net Gain (Loss) on Investments
Interest Expense
Net Nonoperating Revenue
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUE
(EXPENSES), GAINS AND (LOSSES)
OTHER REVENUE
Capital Appropriations - State
Capital Grants and Gifts
Other
Total Other Revenue

Restatement for Adoption of GASB 75
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Restated
End of Year

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

20,734,312

$

20,708,617

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts of Tuition and Fees
Receipts from Grants and Contracts
Payments to Vendors
Payments for Utilities
Payments to Employees
Payments for Benefits
Receipts from Auxiliary Services
Sales and Service of Educational Departments
Other Receipts
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

2018

2017

$ 29,956,702
21,382,113
(40,253,288)
(4,275,239)
(53,394,296)
(24,659,985)
24,938,687
296,218
4,766,118
(41,242,970)

$ 26,306,810
22,123,272
(36,370,438)
(4,616,588)
(51,631,657)
(24,059,214)
25,003,657
266,096
2,984,173
(39,993,889)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Appropriations
Pell Grants Receipts
Other Payment/Expense
Private Gifts for Noncapital Purposes
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

35,999,006
9,922,352
(449,448)
9,770
45,481,680

35,967,358
8,996,227
21,757
44,985,342

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Capital Appropriations
Capital Appropriation - Other
Net Proceeds from Refunding Bond
Payment for Refunding Bond
Loss on Disposal of Building
Loss on Refunding
Change in Assets Held in Trust
Purchases of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Net Cash Used by Capital Financing Activities

5,500,000
419,031
30,410
25,719
(5,591,324)
(3,741,456)
(4,463,978)
(7,821,598)

5,500,000
350,000
45,144,363
(47,580,000)
(669,017)
3,664,776
(7,016,965)
(3,147,540)
(5,047,017)
(8,801,400)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income
Purchase of Investments
Sale of Investment
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

795,761
(1,904,812)
1,123,745
14,694

1,841,408
(58,187,670)
56,543,363
197,101

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(3,568,194)

(3,612,846)

7,910,890

11,523,736

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
$

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(22)

4,342,696

$

7,910,890
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2018

2017

$ (58,129,753)

$ (52,781,836)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense on Student Receivables
Changes in Noncash Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Student Receivables Before Bad Debts
Other Receivables and Other Assets
Due (to) from Affiliate
Government Grants
Due to Primary Government
Other Assets Noncurrent
Accounts Payable
Net Pension Related Activity
Net OPEB Related Activity
Unearned Revenue
Deferred Outflows/Inflows Related to Grants
Accrued Settlement Liability
Accrued Employee Compensation and
Compensated Absences
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

(1,354,014)
(187,401)
(82,410)
1,157,361
(166,710)
304,030
379,446
1,602,073
3,180,897
(516,559)
847,888
-

(808,939)
(750,416)
62,939
1,971,689
166,710
(735,930)
(918,988)
1,326,487
332,499
(36,326)
(159,551)

871,082
$ (41,242,970)

578,449
$ (39,993,889)

NONCASH CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Donation of Land

$

$

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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9,663,033
1,188,067

-

11,532,302
227,022

3,340,000

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization
The accompanying financial statements present the financial position, results of operations,
change in net position, and cash flows of Delaware State University (the University), a
federal land grant institution. The financial statements of the University include the activity of
its main campus in Dover, Delaware and its associated campuses in Wilmington and
Georgetown, Delaware.
The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards as established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). These standards require the University
to evaluate potential component units for which the University is financially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
University is such that exclusion would cause the University’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.
Based on the application of the criteria for determining component units, a certain affiliated
organization is included within the University’s reporting entity as a discretely presented
component unit. The affiliated organization is considered to: 1) receive or hold economic
resources that are to be used for the benefit of the University, 2) receive or hold economic
resources which the University is entitled to or otherwise have the ability to access, and 3) is
significant to the financial statements of the University with which the organization is
affiliated.
Accordingly, the Delaware State University Foundation, Inc. (the Advancement Foundation)
is considered a component unit due to the significance of the financial statement amounts to
the University’s financial statements. The Advancement Foundation is organized as
nonprofit corporations under the laws of Delaware and is exempt from taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisions.
The Advancement Foundation component unit is a nongovernmental entity that prepares
their financial statements using accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).
The University is the sole member of the Early College High School (ECHS), which is a
governmental entity that prepares its financial statements using accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the GASB. ECHS is
considered a component unit of the State of Delaware due to the significance of funding
provided by the state to ECHS. The University pays certain expenses on its behalf. As of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, ECHS owes the University $365,565 and $345,966, respectively,
and it has been recorded as other receivables on the statements of net position. ECHS
operates in a building owned by the University. The University does not charge ECHS for
this space which has an estimated value of $327,000 for the years ended June 30, 2018
and 2017.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Organization (Continued)
Additional information on the University’s discretely presented component unit and the
ECHS, including copies of the audit reports, are available by contacting the Finance and
Administration Office, Delaware State University, 1200 N. DuPont Highway, Dover,
Delaware 19901.
The University is a discretely presented component unit of the State of Delaware (the State).
The financial balances and activities included in these financial statements are, therefore,
also included in the State’s comprehensive annual financial report.
Basis of Presentation
The University’s accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as promulgated by the GASB. For financial reporting purposes,
the University is considered to be a special-purpose government engaged only in businesstype activities. GASB defines business-type activities as activities financed, in whole or in
part, by user charges for goods or services. Accordingly, the accompanying financial
statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, as prescribed by GASB. Revenue is recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred.
New Accounting Standards
The GASB has issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2018. Statement No. 83 establishes criteria
for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding
deferred outflow of resources for legally enforceable liabilities associated with the retirement
of tangible capital assets. Examples of asset retirements covered under this standard are
the decommissioning of a nuclear reactor or the dismantling and removal of sewage
treatment plants as required by law. The University has not yet determined the effect that
the adoption of GASB Statement No. 83 may have on its financial statements.
In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Statement. No. 84,
which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, establishes criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments to determine whether an
activity should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the financial statements. The University has
not yet determined the effect Statement No. 84 will have on its financial statements.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
New Accounting Standards (Continued)
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. Statement No. 87 establishes a
single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. In other words, most leases currently
classified as operating leases will be accounted for and reported in the same manner as
capital leases. The University has determined that, although Statement No. 87 will change
the way it accounts for its operating leases, it will have little, if any, effect on its net position
or results of operations. The provisions in Statement No. 87 are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
The GASB has also issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt,
Including Direct Borrowing and Direct Placements, which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2018. This statement improves the information that is disclosed in
notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and
direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when
disclosing information related to debt. The statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure
in the notes to financial statements as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to
pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to
settle an amount that is fixed as the date the contractual obligation is established. This
statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. For notes to financial statements related to debt, this
statement also requires that existing and additional information be provided for direct
borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. The University has not
yet determined the effect that the adoption of GASB Statement No. 88 may have on its
financial statements.
The GASB has also issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before
the End of a Construction Period, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019. The objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting
period and to simplify the accounting for certain interest costs. This statement also
establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. The University has not yet determined the effect that the adoption of
GASB No. 89 may have on its financial statements.
The GASB has also issued Statement No. 90, Major Equity Interests, which is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. This statement modifies previous guidance
for reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization. This
statement also provides guidance for reporting component unit if a government acquires a
100% equity interest in that component unit. The University has not yet determined the
effect that the adoption of GASB No. 90 may have on its financial statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The University defines cash and cash equivalents as those investments with an original
maturity date of three months or less at time of purchase.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Tuition Revenue and Student Receivables
The University’s tuition and fees revenue is reported net of any scholarship allowance. The
scholarship allowance represents monies received as tuition from outside resources such as
Title IV Federal Grant Program, restricted grants and scholarships, as well as tuition
waivers. Tuition also includes pledged revenue as security for the 2007 bonds in the
amounts of $1,516,239 and $1,485,811 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Student receivables are obligations of students resulting from course registrations. In the
normal course of business, the University extends credit to students. These students are
predominately from the Middle Atlantic region.
Realization of receivables is somewhat dependent upon the collection efforts of the
University, as well as the general economic climate. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided based upon management’s judgments including such factors as previous collection
history and characteristics of the respective receivables. Tuition receivables are due before
the end of the semester for which they were incurred. Amounts that remain uncollected
three weeks after the end of the semester are considered delinquent and are usually
referred to the collection manager. Student receivables are recorded net of estimated
uncollectible amounts. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the allowance for uncollectible
accounts in student receivables was $7,577,193 and $6,385,785, respectively. Third-party
receivables included in net student receivables as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was
$1,019,414 and $666,610, respectively.
Federal Financial Assistance Programs
The University participates in certain federally funded student financial aid programs
including: Federal Direct Loan Program, Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational Opportunity
Grants, Federal Work-Study, and SMART Grants. The University is also the recipient of
awards for research and development activities, as well as other federal awards to support
University activities.
Assets Held in Trust
Assets held in trust are under the control of outside bond trustees and represent reserves
for payment of principal and interest due on the bonds, the maintenance of debt service
reserve funds, and construction funds.
Investments
Investments in debt and equity securities are recorded at fair value based upon quoted
market prices. All gains and losses arising from sales or other disposition of investments are
recorded on a specific identification basis calculated as of the trade date.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital Assets
Capital assets are defined by the University as a purchase with a value of greater than
$5,000 and a useful life of more than one year. Capital assets are stated at cost or, if
received by gift, at estimated acquisition value on the date of contribution. Capital assets,
with the exception of land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of 50 years for buildings and building improvements, 25 years for land improvements
and infrastructure, seven years for equipment and vehicles, five years for software, and five
years for library books. The cost of ordinary maintenance and repairs that do not materially
extend the useful life of assets are expensed as incurred.
Unearned Revenue
The University reports unearned revenue on its statements of net position. Unearned
revenue primarily consists of funds that are received prior to the service being provided by
the University. As such, it is the University’s policy to recognize these balances over the
course of the period that the service is rendered.
Pensions
Certain employees of the University are members of the Delaware State Employees’
Pension Plan which is part of the Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System. The
Retirement Pension System is considered a cost sharing multiple employer plan.
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the plan, and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the retirement
system. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for element, deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resource, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Compensated Absences
It is the University’s policy to allow employees to carry over unused annual leave up to a
maximum of 32 days. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the liability for unused compensated
absences was $2,777,036 and $3,008,783, respectively.
It is the University’s policy, upon retirement, to pay out sick leave balances that have been
accrued up to a maximum of 60 days and for the collective bargaining unit members (1007,
1267, and 2888) to pay out yearly balances that exceed 60 days at the rate of one half day
for every day accrued. Therefore, the University has recorded a liability of $2,492,742
and $2,325,564, related to earned, unused sick leave as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
Net Position
Net position is classified as restricted, unrestricted, or net investment in capital assets.
Restricted net position is those assets for which there are externally imposed constraints,
which have not yet been met. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the University’s policy to use restricted resources first and the unrestricted
resources as they are needed. The net investment in capital assets represents the net book
value of capital assets less the outstanding portion of the related debt financing of capital
assets.
Operating and Nonoperating Components
Operating revenue of the University are generally associated with those activities that
directly relate to the core activities of instruction and research and consist of tuition and
fees, grants and contracts, sales and services of educational activities, and auxiliary
enterprise revenue. Transactions related to capital and financing activities, noncapital
financing activities, investing activities, and State appropriations are reported as
components of nonoperating activities. Restricted and unrestricted resources are spent and
tracked by the departments of the University within the guidelines of donor restrictions.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures about
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the statements of net position and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income Taxes
The University is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is recognized as such by the Internal Revenue Service. The provisions
included in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America provide
consistent guidance for the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
entity’s financial statements and prescribe a threshold of more likely than not for recognition
of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The University performed an
evaluation of uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2018, and determined that there were no
matters that would require recognition in the financial statements or which may have any
effect on its tax-exempt status.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2017 amounts to conform with 2018
presentation.

NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The University has established a policy “Statement of Investment Objectives and Guidelines
for Investment Managers” as amended on February 29, 2016. The primary objective of the
guidelines is the safety of principal by minimizing credit risk and interest rate risk. According
to University policy, risk tolerance can be characterized as medium to medium low.
University policy specifies the types of investments the managers can make, the maximum
percentage of assets that may be invested in particular instruments, the minimum credit
quality of these investments, and the maximum length of time the assets can be invested.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the
University would not be able to recover the value of its deposits, investments, or collateral
securities that were in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are exposed
to custodial credit risk if they are uninsured or not registered in the name of the University
and are held at either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but
not in the University’s name. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, all cash and investment
accounts were held in the name of the University.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk is assumed to arise when the amount of investments that the
University has with one issuer exceeds 5% or more of the total value of the University’s
investments. The University does have a formal policy for concentration of credit risk.
According to this policy “holdings in any one company may generally not exceed 5% of the
market value of each equity portfolio.” In addition, the policy also spells out that “Portfolios
should be well diversified in order to mitigate risk of loss.” As of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
there was no portion of the University portfolio, excluding U.S. Government guaranteed
obligations, which exceed 5% of the portfolio.
(30)
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NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the University will lose money because of the default of the
security issuer or investment counterparty. University policy has not clearly defined ratings
for each type of investments; however, it states that “Investments should focus on high
quality companies with an established and profitable operating record, be in sound financial
condition, and have competent management.” As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, there was no
portion of the University portfolio that was invested in below investment grade securities.
The University’s $3,759,525 and $3,823,079 in federal agency investments were rated AA+
as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, using the Standard and Poor’s rating scale.
The University’s $4,260,488 and $3,932,346 in fixed income investments were not rated as
of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, using the Standard and Poor’s rating scale or any
other major rating agency’s system.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair market
value of an investment. The University policy does not specifically address interest rate risk.
However, it is the University’s intent to hold securities to maturity in order to mitigate interest
rate risk.
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, cash on hand for petty cash and change fund was $18,580,
carrying amounts of the University’s deposits were ($15,372) and $2,499,951, respectively,
bank balances of the University’s deposits were $1,765,559 and $4,258,020, respectively.
The difference is primarily caused by items in transit. Of the bank balances, $250,000 as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, were covered by federal government depository insurance, with
the remaining balance uninsured and uncollateralized. The University has a contractual
agreement with MT&T Bank for funds to be transferred daily from its operating accounts,
included in cash on the statement of net position, in a repurchase/sweep agreement to
cover checks as presented.
Additional $4,339,488, and $5,392,359 of funds available from the state treasurer at
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, are included on the statements of net position.
Personnel of the State Treasurer’s Office in Dover, Delaware control these funds and any
investment decisions are made by the State Treasurer’s Office. The deposits held by the
state of Delaware investment pool, an internal investment pool, are specifically identified for
the University, but the credit risk cannot be categorized for these deposits. Credit risk for
such deposits depends on the investment decisions made by the State Treasurer’s Office
and the risk of loss resides with the State.
The University’s investments totaled $19,647,389 and $18,892,040 as of June 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively. These investments were stated at quoted market value and are owned
by the University.
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NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
The University categorizes its fair value measurements when the fair value hierarchy
established by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are
other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
University’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments were as follows as of June 30, 2018
and 2017:
June 30, 2018
Federal Agencies

Fair Value
$

Level

3,759,525

2

Other Investments
Money Market
Equities
Total

1,208,454
439,705
9,979,217
15,386,901

1
1
1

Investments in Fixed Income
Mutual Funds Measured
at Net Asset Value
Total Investments

4,260,488
19,647,389

N/A

Cash on Hand
Funds Available from State
Treasurer
Total Cash
Total Cash and
Investments
Reconciliation to Statement
of Net Position:
Cash
Expendable Investments
Funds Available from State
Treasurer
Investments
Assets Held in Trust
Total Cash and
Investments

3,208
4,339,488
4,342,696

$ 23,990,085

$

3,208
49,380
4,339,488
15,448,159
4,149,850

$ 23,990,085

(32)

Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Than 1
1 to 5
5 to 10
$

-

$ 3,294,895

$

464,630
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NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Assets Held in Trust
As of June 30, 2018, assets held in trust consisted of:
Debt Service Reserve Fund

$

June 30, 2017
Federal Agencies

Fair Value
$

Level

3,823,079

2

Other Investments
Money Market
Equities
Total

1,155,447
594,906
9,386,262
14,959,694

1
1
1

Investments in Fixed Income
Mutual Funds Measured
at Net Asset Value
Total Investments

3,932,346
18,892,040

N/A

Cash on Hand
Funds Available from
State Treasurer
Total Cash

5,392,359
7,910,890

Total Cash and
Investments

$ 26,802,930

Reconciliation to Statement
of Net Position:
Cash
Expendable Investments
Funds Available from State
Treasurer
Investments
Assets Held in Trust
Total Cash and
Investments

4,149,850

Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Than 1
1 to 5
5 to 10
$

-

$ 3,345,694

2,518,531

$

2,518,531
37,812
5,392,359
14,678,659
4,175,569

$ 26,802,930

Assets Held in Trust
As of June 30, 2017, assets held in trust consisted of:
Debt Service Reserve Fund

$
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4,175,568
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NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Delaware State University Foundation
The Delaware State University Foundation’s investments as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
consisted of the following:

Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Amortized
Cost
$
53,481
4,270,596
5,285,162
3,315,756
1,261,097
50,000
$ 14,236,092

2018
Gross
Gross
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses
$
$
3,663
103,869
1,065,564
383,691
12,407
20,800
10,675
$ 1,452,918
$ 147,751

Fair
Value
$
53,481
4,170,390
6,350,726
3,687,040
1,240,297
39,325
$ 15,541,259

2017

Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Amortized
Cost
$
29,584
3,925,274
5,349,587
3,445,995
1,199,960
50,000
$ 14,000,400

Gross
Unrealized
Gains
$
34,805
673,492
268,108
$ 976,405

Gross
Unrealized
Losses
$
17,231
39,164
15,135
$
71,530

Fair
Value
$
29,584
3,942,848
6,023,079
3,674,939
1,184,825
50,000
$ 14,905,275

The following is a description of the valuation methodology used for assets measured at fair
value as of June 30, 2018 and 2017:
Money Market Fund: Valued at amortized cost.
Fixed Income Fund, U.S. Equity, Non-U.S. Equity, Mutual Funds: Valued at the closing
price reported on the active market by which the fund is traded.
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.:
unobservable data.

Valued based on management estimate using

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of NRV or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Foundation
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants,
the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain
financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

(34)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Delaware State University Foundation (Continued)
The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation’s assets
at fair value as of June 30, 2018 and 2017:
2018
Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Level 1
$
53,481
4,170,390
6,350,726
3,687,040
1,240,297
$ 15,501,934

Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Level 1
$
29,584
3,942,848
6,023,079
3,674,939
1,184,825
$ 14,855,275

Level 2
$

Level 3
-

$

$

$

Fair Value
53,481
4,170,390
6,350,726
3,687,040
1,240,297
39,325
$ 15,541,259

39,325
39,325

$

2017

NOTE 3

Level 2
$

Level 3
-

$

$

$

Fair Value
$
29,584
3,942,848
6,023,079
3,674,939
1,184,825
50,000
$ 14,905,275

50,000
50,000

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS
The University’s other receivables and other assets as of June 30 consisted of the following:
Early College High School
Childcare Lab
Other Miscellaneous
Total
Less: Noncurrent Other Assets
Total Other Receivables

$

(35)

2018
365,565
121,783
503,895
991,243
991,243

$

2017
345,966
117,614
332,588
796,168
7,674
803,842
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NOTE 3

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Pledge Receivables - Delaware State University Foundation, Inc.:
Amounts Due in Less than One Year
Amounts Due in Two to Five Years
Total
Less: Present Value Discount of 2.0%
Allowance for Uncollectable Receivable
Pledges Receivable, Net

$

$

2018
418,792
75,247
494,039
6,315
20,997
466,727

$

$

2017
1,046,664
254,500
1,301,164
5,279
76,624
1,219,261

Other Assets Noncurrent Asset
The Foundation invested $1,500,000, for a one-third membership interest in the Friends of
the Capitol Theater, Inc., a nonstock corporation, which was established to acquire and
maintain the Schwartz Center for the Arts (the Theater). The Foundation has recorded its
interest in the Theater at its initial investment of $1,500,000 (cost) adjusted by its one-third
share of the annual operating income or loss of the Theater. The Foundation owns 50% of
the Theater, for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the Schwartz Theater transferred 50%
ownership of the building, and 50% interest in the operating account of the Friends of the
Capitol Theater to the Foundation. The Foundation has treated the remaining value of the
investment in the Schwartz Theater as of June 30, 2016, of $1,003,148, as the basis of its
new investment in the Schwartz building and operating cash. The operating cash account
was moved to restricted cash as these funds are only available for the repairs and
maintenance associated with the Schwartz Theater. The remaining value of the investment
will be adjusted by the annual depreciation and operating income or loss of the Theater. As
there was no income in 2018 or 2017, the investment was reduced by depreciation of
$20,569 resulting in a residual balance of $797,674 as of June 30, 2018 and $818,243 as of
June 30, 2017. The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the Foundation’s
interest in the Theater for the years ended June 30:
Balance - Beginning
Decline in Net Book Value
Write-off of Investment in Schwartz Center
Balance - Ending

$

$
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2018
818,243
(20,569)
797,674

$

$

2017
1,003,148
(20,568)
(164,337)
818,243
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NOTE 4

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Capital asset activity of the University for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were as
follows:
Additions
and
Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2017
Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Assets Not
Being Depreciated
Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Assets Being
Depreciated
Total
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Accumulated
Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net

$

7,662,297
1,246,468

$

419,177

Retirements
and
Transfers
$

1,148,791

Balance
June 30, 2018
$

7,662,297
516,854

8,908,765

419,177

1,148,791

8,179,151

23,264,656
296,823,639
49,082,355
6,617,926

672,978
3,189,291
2,458,669
-

1,141,825
143,549
-

23,937,634
298,871,105
51,397,475
6,617,926

375,788,576
384,697,341

6,320,938
6,740,115

1,285,374
2,434,165

380,824,140
389,003,291

10,660,986
91,441,516
40,032,224
6,617,926

1,560,417
5,554,020
2,548,596
-

759,939
106,404
-

12,221,403
96,235,597
42,474,416
6,617,926

866,343
1,567,822

157,549,342
$ 231,453,949

148,752,652
$ 235,944,689
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$

9,663,033
(2,922,918)

$
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NOTE 4

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Additions
and
Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2016
Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Assets Not
Being Depreciated
Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Assets Being
Depreciated
Total
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Accumulated
Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net

NOTE 5

$

4,322,297
3,197,665

$

Retirements
and
Transfers

3,340,000
2,965,429

$

4,916,626

Balance
June 30, 2017
$

7,662,297
1,246,468

7,519,962

6,305,429

4,916,626

8,908,765

22,716,586
290,192,297
47,718,843
6,617,926

548,070
6,631,342
1,740,912
-

377,400
-

23,264,656
296,823,639
49,082,355
6,617,926

367,245,652
374,765,614

8,920,324
15,225,753

377,400
5,294,026

375,788,576
384,697,341

8,585,542
85,137,742
37,119,186
6,613,958

2,075,444
6,303,774
3,149,116
3,968

236,078
-

10,660,986
91,441,516
40,032,224
6,617,926

236,078
5,057,948

148,752,652
$ 235,944,689

137,456,428
$ 237,309,186

$

11,532,302
3,693,451

$

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Details of the University’s noncurrent liabilities as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 were as
follows:
2018

Compensated Absences
Notes Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Revenue Bond Premium
Revenue Bonds
Total

June 30,
2017
$
5,334,347
1,150,750
38,263,420
8,530,089
107,940,000
$ 161,218,606

Additions
$

198,679,926
$ 198,679,926

(38)

Reductions
$
64,569
342,630
2,156,929
328,826
3,070,000
$
5,962,954

June 30,
2018
$
5,269,778
808,120
36,106,491
198,679,926
8,201,263
104,870,000
$ 353,935,578

$

$

Current
Portion
736,827
345,498
3,245,000
4,327,325

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 5

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
2017

Compensated Absences
Notes Payable
Net Pension Liability
Revenue Bond Premium
Revenue Bonds
Total

June 30,
2016
$
5,311,611
1,393,290
16,953,218
6,065,726
115,745,000
$ 145,468,845

Additions
$
22,736
21,310,202
2,939,598
42,680,000
$ 66,952,536

Reductions
$
242,540
475,235
50,485,000
$ 51,202,775

June 30,
2017
$
5,334,347
1,150,750
38,263,420
8,530,089
107,940,000
$ 161,218,606

$

$

Current
Portion
991,582
343,146
3,070,000
4,404,728

Accrued Liability
On September 20, 2012, the University entered into an agreement with the Department of
Education to settle a program review by agreeing to pay $1,007,363 over a five-year period.
As of June 30, 2017, the balance outstanding was $166,710. As of June 30, 2018, the debt
agreement was fully paid.
Notes Payable
On December 15, 2005, the University entered into an agreement with the Delaware River
and Bay Authority (DRBA) to demolish the existing terminal building located at the Cheswold
Airport and construct a new building containing approximately 14,375 rentable square feet of
space and to submit the building and land together with any improvements to the Delaware
Air Park Condominium. The University agreed to pay the DRBA the Special Assessment in
consideration for the creation of the DSU Unit and the conveyance of the DSU Unit to
the University in accordance with the terms of the Project Development Agreement. In
connection with this agreement, the University entered into a 20-year mortgage in the
amount of $1,011,545. Principal is payable in 240 monthly installments of $5,509 which
began on January 1, 2007. The interest rate for the first 60 payments is 1.5%, 3% for
payments 61 - 120, and 5.32% for all remaining payments.
On May 28, 2015, the University entered into an agreement with The Delaware Economic
Development Authority (DEDA), also a discretely presented component unit of the state of
Delaware, for funding to purchase new equipment for phase one of the Optical Science
Center for Applied Research (OSCAR) facility located on the Dover Campus, to conduct
advanced optical research. In connection with this agreement, the University agreed to pay
a 12-year note in the amount of $3,000,000. There was no interest on the loan. DEDA made
a disbursement in the amount of $1,000,000 on June 29, 2015. The disbursement in the
amount of $1,000,000 due on June 30, 2016, has not been received. Another payment of
$1,000,000 was scheduled on June 30, 2017. The DEDA disbursed the remaining loan
amount of $2,000,000 on August 09, 2018. On July 1, 2015, the first principal payment of
$100,000 was made. On July 1, 2016, a principal payment of $200,000 was made. On
July 1, 2017, and on the first day of the next 84 months (seven years), a principal payment
of $300,000 will be made annually. On July 1, 2025, payment of $200,000 will be made. On
July 1, 2026, a final principal payment of $100,000 will be made.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Notes Payable (Continued)
Following is a summary of remaining payment schedule for Delaware River and Bay
Authority and Delaware Economic Development Authority notes payable as of June 30,
2018:
Fiscal Years
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 - 2026
Totals

$

$

Principal
345,498
147,979
50,594
53,353
56,261
154,435
808,120

$

$

Interest
20,613
18,133
15,517
12,759
9,850
10,839
87,711

$

$

Total
366,111
166,112
66,111
66,112
66,111
165,274
895,831

Revenue Bonds
Series 1999 Bonds
On May 6, 1999, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$15,865,000 (par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority (the
Authority). The bonds are due on October 1, 2017 and are secured by unappropriated
gross revenue of the University.
The Bond Trust Indenture requires the University to maintain a debt service reserve fund
equal to the maximum annual debt service on all bonds outstanding under the Indenture.
The University meets this requirement by providing for the deposit through a surety bond
in the Debt Reserve Fund. This bond was obtained from MBIA Insurance Corporation in
the amount of $1,433,608 and expired on October 1, 2017, as the debt was fully
satisfied. The University has pledged all operating and nonoperating revenue, except
state appropriations and restricted gifts, grants, and bequests, for each academic year
during which any of the bonds remain outstanding.
On March 1, 2012, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$32,145,000 (par value) through the Authority which were in part used to refund
certain maturities of Series 1999 bonds. The issuance of Series 2012 bonds and
refunding resulted in a $2,725,000 reduction in Series 1999 bond obligations. The final
principle payment was made on October 1, 2017. At June 30, 2018, $-0- remained
outstanding on the 1999 Revenue Bonds.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Series 2007 Bonds
On December 20, 2007, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$47,580,000 (par value) through the Authority. The bonds are interest only through
October 1, 2018; due on October 1, 2036; and are secured by unappropriated gross
revenue of the University. The 2007 bonds were being issued as “Additional Bonds”
under the Indenture, secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and
outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness as provided in the
Indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The 2007 Bonds are insured by MBIA Insurance
Corporation. The University has pledged all operating and nonoperating revenue, except
state appropriations and restricted gifts, grants, and bequests, for each academic year
during which any of the bonds remain outstanding. The bonds were secured for the
construction of a new student union, a swimming pool, and a student wellness/recreation
center. As of April 4, 2017 the Series 2007 were refunded via the issuance of Series
2017 revenue-refunding bonds. Proceeds from the bond issuance remained in escrow
until the October 1, 2017 callable date at which time they were fully refunded.
Series 2011 Energy Efficiency Bonds
The University entered into a Guaranteed Energy Savings Agreement with Johnson
Controls, Inc. in the amount of $11,265,000. In connection with this agreement and to
fund energy efficiency projects, energy efficiency revenue bonds were issued through
the State of Delaware Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. on August 1, 2011. The bonds are
due September 15, 2032, and are limited obligations of the University, payable only from
amounts appropriated by the State that are eligible for payment of the Installment
Payments pursuant to the Energy Performance Contracting Act. The 2011 bonds are
equally and ratably secured by the trust estate, and failure of the State to appropriate
each year sufficient available funds will cause insufficient funds to be deposited into the
bond fund to pay all principal and interest on the bonds when due. Johnson Controls,
Inc. guaranteed that the savings achieved will be sufficient to cover the financing costs
associated with the bond, upon completion of the energy upgrades to various buildings
and systems throughout the University. In the event that the savings are not realized,
Johnson Controls, Inc. will be responsible for the amount of that deficiency. As of
June 30, 2018, $10,620,050 including $715,050 of unamortized bond premium remained
outstanding on the 2011 energy efficiency bonds.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Series 2012 Bonds
On March 1, 2012, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$32,145,000 (par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The
bonds are due October 1, 2036 and are secured by a pledge of certain unappropriated
revenue of the University. The 2012 bonds were issued as “Additional Bonds” under the
Indenture, secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and outstanding
under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness as provided in the Indenture and
in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2012 Bonds were used to finance: (1) the
refunding of certain maturities of The Delaware Economic Development Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds (Delaware State University Project) Series 1999; (2) the
purchase of the University Village, a four building, 628-bed student housing facility and
dining hall located on the campus of the University, the construction of which was
financed by the Kent County, Delaware Variable Rate Demand Student Housing
Revenue Bonds (Delaware State University Student Housing Foundation Project) Series
2004B; (3) the funding of any required reserve funds relating to the 2012 Bonds; and
(4) the costs of issuance and any credit enhancement of the 2012 Bonds. As of June 30,
2018, $26,487,333 including $1,402,333 of unamortized bond premium remained
outstanding on the 2012 revenue bonds.
Series 2014 Bonds
On December 11, 2014, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$29,225,000 (par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The
bonds are due October 1, 2039 and are secured by unappropriated gross revenue of the
University. The 2014 bonds were issued as “Additional Bonds” under the Indenture,
secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and outstanding under the
Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness outstanding as provided in the Indenture
and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2014 bonds, together with other
available funds, were used to finance: (1) purchase of the University Courtyard, a
416-bed student housing facility located on campus from the Delaware State University
Housing Foundation; (2) construction, equipping, and furnishing of an optical science
center for applied research; (3) acquisition and capital improvement of the former
Sheraton Hotel and Convention Center, now known as the Living and Learning
Commons, a 264-bed student housing facility and space used by Delaware State
University Early College High School. As of June 30, 2018, $30,509,787 including
$3,309,787 of unamortized bond premium remained outstanding on the 2014 revenue
bonds.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Series 2017 Bonds
On April 3, 2017, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$42,680,000 (par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The
bonds mature between April 3, 2017 and October 1, 2039 and are secured by
unappropriated gross revenue of the University. The 2017 bonds were issued as
“Additional Bonds” under the indenture, secured equally and eatable with all other Bonds
issued and outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness
outstanding as provided in the indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of
the 2017 bonds, together with other available funds, were used to refund the 2007
revenue series bonds. Series 2017 revenue bonds issued as refunding bonds, the
proceeds of which were used to refund the series 2007 for a net present value savings
of $3.5 million, or 7.37% of the principal refunded. The bonds bear coupons between
3.0% and 5.0% and yield between 1.17% and 3.99%. The 2007 bonds were secured for
the construction of a new student union, a swimming pool, and a student
wellness/recreation center. As of June 30, 2018 $45,454,094 including $ 2,774,093 of
unamortized bond premium remained outstanding on the 2017 revenue bonds.
Remaining Maturities
Remaining maturities and interest due relating to the University’s revenue bonds as of
June 30, 2018 was as follows:
Fiscal Years
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 - 2028
2029 - 2033
2034 - 2038
2039 - 2043
2044 - 2045
Total
Plus Unamortized Bond
Premiums and Discount
Total

NOTE 6

Principal
Amount
$
3,245,000
3,435,000
3,575,000
3,735,000
3,955,000
22,490,000
27,905,000
24,490,000
10,030,000
2,010,000
104,870,000

Interest
Amount
$ 4,622,850
4,488,700
4,336,050
4,165,400
3,983,675
17,048,381
11,610,982
5,270,738
1,287,725
101,750
$ 56,916,251

Total
7,867,850
7,923,700
7,911,050
7,900,400
7,938,675
39,538,381
39,515,982
29,760,738
11,317,725
2,111,750
$ 161,786,251

$

8,201,263
$ 113,071,263

PENSION PLAN
The State Employees’ Pension Plan (the Plan) is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit plan established in the Delaware Code. Separately issued financial statement for the
Delaware Public Employees Retirement Plan (DPERP) are available at pension office at
McArdle Building, Suite 1, 860 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904.
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PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Plan Description and Eligibility
The State Employees’ Pension Plan covers virtually all full time or regular part-time
employees of the State, including employees of other affiliated entities. There are two tiers
within this plan 1) employees hired prior to January 1, 2012 (Pre-2012) and 2) employees
hired on or after January 1, 2012 (Post-2011).
Service Benefits
Final average monthly compensation (employees hired Post-2011 may not include overtime
in its compensation) multiplied by years of credited service prior to January 1, 1997, plus
final average monthly compensation multiplies by 1.85% and multiplied by years of credited
services after December 31, 1996, subject to minimum limitations. For this plan, final
average monthly compensation is monthly average of the highest three periods of
12 consecutive months of compensation.
Vesting
Pre-2012 date of hire: five years of credited service. Post-2011 date of hire: 10 years of
credited service.
Retirement
Pre-2012 date of hire: Age 62 with five years of credited service; age 60 with 15 years of
credited service; or after 30 years of credited service at any age. Post-2011 date of hire: age
65 with at least 10 years of credited service; age 60 with 20 years of credited service; and
30 years of credited service at any age.
Disability Benefits
Pre-2012 date of hire: same as service benefits. Employee must have five years of credited
service. In lieu of disability pension benefits, over 90% of the members of this plan opted
into a Disability Insurance Program offered by the State effective January 1, 2006.
Post-2011 date of hire: in the Disability Insurance Program.
Survivor Benefits
If employee is receiving a pension, the eligible survivor receives 50% of pension (or 75%
with 3% reduction of benefit); if employee is active with at least five years of credited
service, eligible survivor receives 75% of the benefit the employee would have received at
age 62.
Burial Benefit
$7,000 per member.
Contributions
Employer-determined by Board of Pension Trustees. Employer contributions were 20.66%
of earnings for fiscal year 2015 and 2016.

(44)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6

PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Contributions (Continued)
Pre-2012 date of hire member – 3% of earnings in excess of $6,000.
Post-2011 date of hire member – 5% of earnings in excess of $6,000.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University reported a liability of $36,106,491 and
$38,263,420, respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and update procedures were used to roll forward
the total pension liability to June 30, 2016 and a roll forward methodology was again used to
determine the total pension liability for 2017. The University’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the University’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating government units
actuarially determined. As of June 30, 2018, the University’s proportion was 2.463%, which
was .077% lower from 2.54%, its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.
For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the University recognized a pension expense
of $7,414,793 and $6,907,539, respectively. As of June 30, 2018, the University reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the following
sources:

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions
Changes in Proportion
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments
Difference Between Actual and
Expected Experience
Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement
Total

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
7,094,452
246,529

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

663,984

4,220,980

-

416,808

636,582

5,066,411
$ 17,045,180

$

1,300,566

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $5,066,411, related to the net pension
liability resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)
Fiscal Years
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Total

Amortization
$
1,385,969
5,119,621
3,496,303
(144,695)
821,005
$ 10,678,203

Actuarial Assumptions
The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions as of June 30:
Investment Rate of Return/Discount rate (1)
Projected Salary Increases
Ad Hoc Cost of Living Adjustments

2018
7.00%
2.5% + Merit
0.00%

2017
7.20%
3.5% to 11.5%
0.00%

(1) Inflation is included at 2.5%

The total pension liabilities are measured based on assumptions pertaining to the interest
rates, inflation rates, and employee demographic behavior in future years. It is likely that
future experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual
experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher than
expected or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates the larger the impact
on future financial statements.
Projected benefit payments do not include the effects of projected ad hoc cost-of-living
adjustments (as hoc COLAs) as they are not substantively automatic. The primary
considerations relevant to making this determination include the historic pattern of granting
the changes and the consistency in the amounts of the changes.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighing the expected future real rates of return by an asset allocation percentage, and by
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major
asset class included in the Plan’s current and expected asset allocation as of June 30, 2017
is summarized in the following table:
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Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
2017

Asset Class
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Alternative Investments
Cash and Equivalents

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return
5.7%
5.7%
2.0%
7.8%
0.0%

Asset
Allocation
33.5%
13.7%
26.6%
22.7%
3.5%

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return
5.7%
5.7%
2.0%
7.8%
0.0%

Asset
Allocation
34.0%
14.7%
25.0%
20.9%
5.4%

2016

Asset Class
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Alternative Investments
Cash and Equivalents

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made at rates determined by the Board of Pension Trustees, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of the projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
Information Included in the DPERS Financial Statements
Actuarial assumptions, long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments,
discount rate, and pension plan fiduciary net position are available in the financial
statements of DPERS as noted above.
Sensitivity of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate
The University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of $36,106,491 was
calculated using the discount rate of 7.0%. Additionally, the University’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point lower (6.0%) is $65,003,000 or one percentage point higher (8.0%) is $11,612,000.
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OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
Following is the University’s other postemployment benefits liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits and
other postemployment benefits expense and expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018:
Net OPEB Liability
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB Expense
Contributions

$ 198,679,926
5,361,512
27,671,918
3,180,896
5,361,512

Plan Description and Eligibility
The State of Delaware’s Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Trust Fund is a cost sharing
multiple-employer defined-benefit plan. The plan is administered by the Delaware Public
Employee’s Retirement System (DPERS). The State of Delaware (the State) is responsible
for the policy and management of the OPEB benefits provided to retirees. The Plan’s assets
may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members of the plan in accordance with
the terms of the Plan. Additional financial information and actuarial information with respect
to the Plan may be found in the State of Delaware Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
available online at https://accounting.delaware.gov.
The Plan provides retirement medical coverage to pensioners and their eligible dependents
covered under the following pension plans: State Employees’, New State Police, Judiciary,
and Closed State Police Pension Plans. This includes the employees of the State as well as
employees’ of the State’s component units and affiliated agencies which are part of the
State Employees’ pension plan. Those employers are Delaware State University, Delaware
State Housing Authority, Delaware Charter Schools, University of Delaware, Delaware Solid
Waste Authority, and the Delaware State Education Association. The participant’s cost of
the Plan benefits is variable based on years of service within those pension plan categories.
Substantially all State employees become eligible for post-retirement benefits if they reach
retirement age while working for the State. The costs of providing these benefits are shared
between the State and the retired employee. The plan provisions are as follows:
Eligibility:
Employees:
 Early Retirement – age 55 with 15 years of service or any age with 25 years of
service.
 Normal Retirement (hired before January 1, 2012) – age 62 with five years of
service or age 60 with 15 years of service or any age with 30 years of service.
 Normal Retirement (hired on or after January 1, 2012) – age 65 with 10 years of
service, or age 60 with 20 years of service or any age with 30 years of service.
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Benefits
The Plan provides health insurance options through several providers.
Spouse and Survivor Coverage
Both are available under any of the plan options with similar retiree contributions. Surviving
spouses are eligible for coverage after the retiree’s death.
Retiree Contributions
If hired prior to July 1, 1991, no contributions are required. If hired on or after July 1, 1991
(except disability pension), contributions depend on years of service, as shown on the table
below:
Between July 1, 1991 and December 31, 2006
Percent of Premium
Years of Service
Paid by State
Less than 10
0%
10 - 14
50%
15 - 19
75%
20 or more
100%

After January 1, 2017
Percent of Premium
Years of Service
Paid by State
Less than 15
0%
15 - 17.5
50%
17.5 - 19
75%
20 or more
100%

Funding Policy
The State funds the OPEB for current retirees on a pay-as-you-go basis along with funding
for future benefits at a rate that is approved in the annual budget, but not actuarially
determined. Additional funding has also been provided on an ad hoc basis. By State Statute
Chapter 52, Title 29 of the Delaware Code, contribution requirements of plan members and
the government are established and may be amended by the State Legislature. Funds are
recorded in the OPEB Trust for the payment of retiree healthcare claims, administrative and
investment expenses. Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings. State
appropriations, other employer contributions, and retiree contributions for healthcare are
recorded in the OPEB Trust. The funds available are invested under the management of the
DPERS Board of Pension Trustees, which acts as the board of trustees for the OPEB Trust
and is responsible for the financial management of the OPEB Trust.
Contributions
The contribution rates for the employer and retiree are established annually by the
budgeting process of the State. Those rates include an employer contribution based on
projected pay-as-you go financing requirements as a percent of covered payroll, with an
additional amount to prefund benefits, which is not actuarially determined.
Retiree contribution rates are affected by the retiree date of hire, with eligible retirees hired
after June 30, 1991 paying a proportionately higher rate if their years of service total less
than 20.
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Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016, using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified:





Ultimate Rate of Medical Inflation 4.0%
Salary Increases
3.25% (plus merit scale), including inflation
Investment Rate of Return
3.75%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,
including inflation
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
7.0% for 2016, decreasing 0.2% per year to an
ultimate rate of 4.0% for 2032 and later years

Mortality rates are based on the sex-distinct employee, healthy annuitant, and disabled
annuitant mortality tables described below, including adjustment factors. Future mortality
improvements are reflected by applying a custom projection scale on a generational basis to
adjusted base tables from the base year.
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015. As a result
of the 2015 actuarial experience study, claim curves, decrements, and healthcare trends
were updated in the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation to more closely reflect actual
experience.
The long-term expected rate of return on the OPEB Trust plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017
are summarized in the following table:

Target
Allocation
36.7%
19.2%
38.1%
6.0%
100.0%

Asset Class
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Cash and Cash Equivalents
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OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.85% at the beginning of
the current measurement period and 3.58% at the end, based on the Bond Buyer GO 20
Bond Municipal Bond Index, an index satisfying the GASB requirement of an index rate for
20 year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be continue to follow the pay as you go contribution
policy.
Sensitivity of the Collective Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following table represents the net OPEB liability of the University, as well as what the
University’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Collective Net OPEB Liability

1% Decrease
(2.58%)
$ 238,226,302

Discount Rate
(3.58%)
$ 198,679,926

1% Increase
(4.58%)
$ 167,863,791

Sensitivity of the Collective Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the University, as well as what the
University’s net OPEB liabilities would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend
rates that are one percentage point lower (7.0% decreasing to 6.0%) or one percentage
point higher (7.0% increasing to 8.0%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Collective Net OPEB Liability

1% Decrease
(6.0%)
$ 168,221,725

Healthcare
Trend Rate
(7.0%)
$ 198,679,926

1% Increase
(8.0%)
$ 235,989,367

OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
The net OPEB liability at June 30, 2018 was measured as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to
June 30, 2017, which is the measurement date. The total OPEB liability at June 30, 2018
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 and rolled forward to the
measurement date. At June 30, 2018, the amount recognized as the University’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability was $198,679,626.
The allocation percentage assigned to each contributing employer is based on the
employer’s proportionate share of employer contributions to the Plan for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017. Employer contributions are recognized when due.
At June 30, 2018, the University’s proportion was 2.4066%, a decrease of .0539% from its
proportion of 2.4605% calculated as of June 30, 2017.

(51)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 7
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OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the University recognized an OPEB expense of
$3,180,896. As of June 30, 2018, the University reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Changes of Actuarial Assumptions
Changes in Proportion
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments
Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement
Total

$

$

-

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$ 23,194,387
4,084,138

-

393,393

5,361,512
5,361,512

$ 27,671,918

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $5,361,512 related to the net OPEB liability
resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Fiscal Years
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Total

NOTE 8

Amortization
$
5,554,053
5,554,053
5,554,053
5,554,053
5,455,706
$ 27,671,918

RISK MANAGEMENT
The University participates in the statewide self-insurance programs for workers’
compensation; employee health care and accident; automobile accident; and property and
casualty claims. It is the policy of the State not to purchase commercial insurance to cover
these risks. Instead, State management believes it is more economical to manage its risk
internally and thus, covers all claim settlements and judgments out of its general fund. The
University continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risk of loss, including
general liability, educators’ legal liability, professional legal liability, supplemental workers’
compensation, aviation, and hired non-owned vehicle, cyber security breech, and the
remainder of the property and casualty liability. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from prior years. In the past three years of insured coverage, settled
claims have not exceeded commercial coverage. The University remits premiums to the
State to cover the costs of servicing and claims payments. The premiums are based on a
percentage of annual payroll.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
More information can be obtained from the State of Delaware’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. A report can be obtained from the Department of Finance, Division of
Accounting @ http://accounting.delaware.gov/cafrdefault.shtml.

NOTE 9

ENDOWMENT SPENDING POLICY
The Advancement Foundation’s Board chooses to spend only a portion of the investment
returns each year. Under the policy established by the board, 4.5% of the three-year
average fair value of endowment investments at March 31 was authorized for expenditure.
The remaining amount, if any, is retained for use in future years when the amount computed
using the spending rate policy exceeds the investment return. The authorized level of
expenses for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $617,777 and $576,199,
respectively. Actual level of spending for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was
$434,411 and $422,527, respectively.

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In an arrangement with the University’s component unit, the Advancement Foundation, the
University provides day-to-day management and accounting services, which also include
additional services such as: security, operational support, utilities, telecommunications, and
shared dining facilities. The exchange of such services results in affiliate transactions which
consist of $176,480 and $94,070 due to/from affiliate as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
NOTE 11 RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION
The University implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Statement No. 75 requires the
University to report its share of the defined benefit other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
liabilities and expense, as well as the related deferred outflows or resources and deferred
inflows of resources, allocated to it by the DPERS. The July 1, 2017, balance of the net
OPEB liability and related deferred outflows of resources is reported in the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as a restatement to the 2017 net position
at beginning of year. DPERS was not able to provide sufficient information to restate the
June 30, 2017 financial statements.
Net Position, Beginning of Year as Preciously Reported,
July 1, 2017
Implementation of GASB 75
Net Position, Beginning of Year, Restated, July 1, 2017
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$ 121,366,279
(217,809,436)
$ (96,443,157)
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NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
In the normal course of its activities, the University is a party in various legal and
administrative actions. After taking into consideration legal counsel’s evaluation of pending
actions and information relative to potential future claims based on past events, other than
the item below, the University’s management is of the opinion that the outcome thereof will
not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.
Most grants and cost-reimbursable contracts specify the types of expenses for which the
grant or contract funds may be used. The expenses made by the University, under these
grants and contracts are subject to audit. In the opinion of management, adjustments for
unallowable costs, if any, resulting from such audits would not have a material effect on the
accompanying financial statements.
NOTE 13 STUDENT HOUSING FACILITY PROJECT
In fiscal year 2018, the University entered into a ground lease agreement with CHF – Dover,
LLC (CHF), an Alabama limited liability company the sole member of which is Collegiate
Housing Foundation. CHF is to finance, construct, and operate a 620-bed student housing
and dining facility. The University leased certain property to CHF, on which the new facility is
to be constructed. The lease term begins on the commencement date, May 2, 2018, and
expires on either the 50th anniversary of the commencement date, or the date of any
redemption, defeasance, or termination of the bonds CHF used to finance the facility, or the
date the University pays CHF the amount of the outstanding bonds. Upon termination of
the ground lease, all the rights and interest in the student housing and fining facility revert to
the University. CHF is to pay rent to the University in an amount equal to Net Available Cash
Flow, as defined in the ground lease agreement. Once completed, CHF shall operate the
student housing facility. CHF is responsible for maintenance of the facility at its own
expense.
The University and CHF also entered into a dining facility lease. CHF is to lease the dining
facility to the University, the term of which begins when the dining facility is completed,
currently planned for August of 2019. This agreement will continue until the expiration of the
ground lease agreement. The University will pay $200,000 a year in rent payments.
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability
The University's Proportion of the Total Net
Pension Liability
The University's Proportionate Share of the
Total Net Pension Liability

$

State's Others' Proportionate Share of the
Total Pension Liability
Total
The University's Covered Payroll

2018

2017

2016

2015

2.46%

2.54%

2.55%

2.55%

36,106,491

$

38,263,420

$

16,953,218

$

9,397,681

1,429,901,553

1,468,678,815

648,315,362

358,816,820

$ 1,466,008,044

$ 1,506,942,235

$ 665,268,580

$ 368,214,501

$

$

$

$

48,854,341

49,291,321

48,488,990

48,633,104

The University's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability as a Percentage of its Covered
Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
Total Pension Liability

73.91%

77.63%

34.96%

19.32%

85.31%

84.11%

92.67%

95.80%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
Schedule of Contributions
Contractually Required Contribution
Contribution in Relation to the Contractually
Required Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

2018
5,066,411

$

2017
4,596,417

$

2016
4,639,186

$

2015
4,543,491

$

(5,066,411)
-

$

(4,596,417)
-

$

(4,639,186)
-

$

(4,543,491)
-

University's Covered Payroll

$

48,854,341

$

49,291,321

$

48,488,990

$

48,633,104

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered
Payroll

10.37%

9.33%

9.57%

9.34%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
information prior to June 30, 2015 is not available.
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
Changes of Benefit Terms: The State Employees’ Pension Plan (the Plan) had no changes in benefit
terms since the previous valuation.
Changes in Assumptions: Assumption changes from 2017 to 2018 include a reduction in the inflation
assumption from 3.0% to 2.5% and a reduction in the investment rate of return from 7.2% to 7.0%.
Mortality assumptions are based on the RP-2014 tables with gender adjustments for healthy annuitants
and disables retirees and an adjusted version on MP-205 mortality improvement scale on a fully
generational basis.
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of
OPEB Liability
2018
2.41%

The University's Proportion of the Total Net OPEB Liability
The University's Proportionate Share of the Total Net OPEB Liability

$

State's Others' Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability
Total
The University's Covered Payroll

198,679,926

2017
2.46%
$

223,518,401

8,056,963,576

8,860,578,031

$ 8,255,643,502

$ 9,084,096,432

$

$

The University's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability as
a Percentage of its Covered Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB
Liability

48,854,341

49,291,321

406.68%

453.46%

4.10%

3.30%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
However, information prior to June 30, 2017 is not available.
Schedule of Contributions
Contractually Required Contribution
Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$
$

2018
5,361,512
(5,361,512)
-

University's Covered Payroll

$

48,854,341

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

10.97%

$

2017
5,708,965
(5,708,965)
-

$

49,291,321

$

11.58%

This schedule was presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
information prior to June 30, 2017 is not available.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Board of Trustees
Delaware State University
Dover, Delaware
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented
component unit of Delaware State University (the University) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2018. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our report includes a reference to other
auditors who audited the financial statements of the Delaware State University Foundation, as
described in our report on the University’s financial statements. The financial statements of the
Delaware State University Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards, and accordingly, this report does not include reporting on internal control over financial
reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance associated with the Delaware State University
Foundation.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
have not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses and significant deficiencies.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2018-001 to be a material weaknesses.
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2018-002 through 2018-007 to be significant deficiencies.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
University’s Response to Findings
The University’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
corrective action plan. The University’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
December 6, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, AND REPORT ON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees
Delaware State University
Dover, Delaware
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Delaware State University’s (the University) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the University’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The
University’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the University’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University’s
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Other Matters
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2018-008 through 2018-015. Our opinion on each
major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.
The University’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying corrective action plan. The University’s responses were not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2018-008 through 2018-015, that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.
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The University’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying corrective action plan. The University’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented
component unit of Delaware State University, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2018, which contained unmodified
opinions on those financial statements. Our report includes a reference to other auditors. Our audit was
conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
March 29, 2019
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Federal CFDA
Number

Passed Through
Grantor's Number

84.007
84.033
84.063
84.268
84.379

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Passed to
Subrecipients

Total Federal
Expenditures

Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Department of Education Direct Programs:
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants
Federal Work-Study Program
Federal Pell Grant Program
Federal Direct Loan Program
Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education Grants
Subtotal of Department of Education Direct Programs
Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster

$

-

$

184,307
188,756
9,922,352
39,636,936
10,344
49,942,695

-

49,942,695

119,685
22,500
142,185

19,449
93,196
1,367,807
661,923
5,544
3,035
117,762
11,167
194,774
2,474,657

Research and Development Cluster
Department of Agriculture Direct Programs:
Farmers' Market and Local Food Promotion Program
Cooperative Forestry Research
Payments to 1890 Land-Grant Colleges and Tuskegee University
1890 Institution Capacity Building Grants
Agriculture and Food Research Initiative
Corp Protection and Pest Management Competitive Grants Program
Community Outreach and Assistance Partnership Program
Cooperative Extension Service
Technical Agricultural Assistance
Subtotal of Department of Agriculture Direct Programs

10.168
10.202
10.205
10.216
10.310
10.329
10.443
10.500
10.960

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
Department of Agriculture Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the Delaware Department of Agriculture
Specialty Crop Block Grant Program - Farm Bill
Passed Through the University of Maryland College Park
Grants for Agricultural Research, Special Research Grants
Passed Through the University of Vermont
Sustainable Agriculture Research and Education
Sustainable Agriculture Research and Education
Passed Through the Virginia State University
1891 Institution Capacity Building Grants
Passed Through the University of Maryland Eastern Shore
1890 Institution Capacity Building Grants
Passed Through the Pennsylvania State University
Agriculture and Food Research Initiative
Agriculture and Food Research Initiative

Federal CFDA
Number

Passed Through
Grantor's Number

Passed to
Subrecipients

10.170

14-SCBGP-DE-0010

10.200

29182-Z5659004

55,376

100,884

10.215
10.215

SNE16-03-29994
SNE17-03-31064

-

26,169
54,237

10.216

2013-SP10002

-

3,741

10.216

2014-38821-22430

-

46,167

10.310
10.310

4712-DSU-USDA-9703
2011-68004-30057

-

34,227
1,658

10.587

2014-67001-8185

55,376
197,561

921
282,762
2,757,419

11.303
11.307
11.427
11.472

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

14,754
14,754

128,789
39,509
5,755
81,427
255,480

$

Total Federal
Expenditures

-

$

14,758

Passed Through the University of Tennessee
National Food Service Management Institute Administration and Staffing
Subtotal of Department of Agriculture Pass-Through Programs
Total Department of Agriculture
Department of Commerce Direct Programs:
Economic Development - Technical Assistance
Economic Adjustment Assistance
Fisheries Development and Utilization Research and Development Grants
Unallied Science Program
Subtotal of Department of Commerce Direct Programs

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
(5)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
Department of Commerce Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Sea Grant Support
Sea Grant Support
Passed Through Florida A&M University
Educational Partnership Program
Passed Through the University of Maryland Eastern Shore
Educational Partnership Program
Educational Partnership Program
Subtotal of Department of Commerce Pass-Through Programs
Total Department of Commerce
Department of Defense Direct Programs:
Basic and Applied Scientific Research
Basic Scientific Research
Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engineering
Air Force Defense Research Scientific Program
Total Department of Defense
Department of the Interior Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Environment Cooperative Agreement
Total Department of the Interior

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal CFDA
Number

Passed Through
Grantor's Number

11.417
11.417

45852
44855

11.481

C-4261

11.481
11.481

Passed to
Subrecipients

$

Total Federal
Expenditures

-

$

5,471
9,569

-

43,900

NA16SEC4810007
NA11SEC4810002

14,754

227,091
7,463
293,494
548,974

12.300
12.431
12.630
12.800

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2,580
145,023
147,603

177,462
216,104
495,700
172,368
1,061,634

15.423

M16AC00009

-

31,789
31,789

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
Department of Justice Pass-Through Programs From
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Grants to Reduce Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking on Campus
Total Department of Justice
National Aeronautics and Space Administration Direct Programs:
Science
Subtotal of National Aeronautics and Space Administration Direct Programs
National Aeronautics and Space Administration Pass-Through Programs:
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Science
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Education
Subtotal of National Aeronautics and Space Administration Pass-Through Programs
Total National Aeronautics and Space Administration Program
National Science Foundation Direct Programs:
Engineering Grants
Mathematical and Physical Sciences
Geosciences
Computer and Information Science and Engineering
Biological Sciences
Education and Human Resources
Subtotal of National Science Foundation Direct Programs

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal CFDA
Number

Passed Through
Grantor's Number

16.525

2014-WA-AX-0011

43.001

N/A

43.001

Passed to
Subrecipients

$

Total Federal
Expenditures

-

$

71,061
71,061

142,428
142,428

823,479
823,479

47004

-

8,993

43.008

47933

142,428

137,555
146,548
970,027

47.041
47.049
47.050
47.070
47.074
47.076

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

4,000
2,400
6,400

76,510
90,421
56,043
8,202
489,140
1,805,728
2,526,044

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
National Science Foundation Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Education and Human Resources
Passed Through Drexel University
Education and Human Resources
Education and Human Resources
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Office of International Science and Engineering
Passed Through Clemson University
Office of Experimental Program to Stimulate Competitive Research
Subtotal of National Science Foundation Pass-Through Programs
Total National Science Foundation
Department of Energy Direct Programs:
Renewable Energy Research and Development
Fossil Energy Research and Development
Subtotal of Department of Energy Direct Programs
Department of Energy Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the Consolidated Nuclear Security, LLC
Nuclear Energy Research, Development and Demonstration
Passed Through Florida A&M University
National Nuclear Security Administration (NNSA) Minority Serving Institutions (MSI) Program
National Nuclear Security Administration (NNSA) Minority Serving Institutions (MSI) Program
Subtotal of Department of Energy Pass-Through Programs
Total Department of Energy
Department of Education Direct Program:
International Research and Studies Program

Department of Health and Human Services Direct Programs:
Discovery and Applied Research for Technological Innovations
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program
Extramural Research Program in the Neurosciences and Neurological Disorders
Biomedical Research and Research Training
Aging Research
Subtotal of Department of Health and Human Services Direct Programs

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Federal CFDA
Number

Passed Through
Grantor's Number

47.076

30705

47.076
47.076

235920
U0139888

47.079

Passed to
Subrecipients

$

Total Federal
Expenditures

-

$

12,217

-

23,606
29,804

1301765

5,700

920,557

47.081

1963-206-2012124

5,700
12,100

48,834
1,035,018
3,561,062

81.087
81.089

N/A
N/A

-

20,405
19,810
40,215

81.121

2015-05-31-26

-

79,066

81.123
81.123

4320
C-4980

-

52,774
99,833
231,673
271,888

84.017

N/A

-

32,617

93.286
93.645
93.853
93.859
93.866

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

411,821
411,821

9,627
9,967
98,835
2,015,501
319,196
2,453,126

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title
Department of Health and Human Services Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the Alfred I DuPont Hospital for Children - Nemours Foundation
Biomedical Research and Research Training
Passed Through the University of Delaware
Biomedical Research and Research Training
Biomedical Research and Research Training
Subtotal of Department of Health and Human Services Pass-Through Programs
Total Department of Health and Human Services

Federal CFDA
Number

Passed Through
Grantor's Number

93.859

P20GM109021

93.859
93.859

43272
46289

Total Research and Development Cluster

Passed to
Subrecipients

$

Total Federal
Expenditures

-

$

4,795

411,821

7,892
610,593
623,280
3,076,406

926,267

12,382,877

Other Programs:
Department of Agriculture Direct and Pass-Through Programs:
Agricultural Research - Basic and Applied Research
Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control, and Animal Care
Cooperative Forestry Research
Community Outreach and Assistance Partnership Program
Rural Development 11-12
1890 Institution Capacity Building Grants
Passed Through Virginia State University
1890 Institution Capacity Building Grants
Subtotal CFDA # 10.216
Cooperative Extension Service
Passed Through the Pennsylvania State University
Cooperative Extension Service
Subtotal CFDA # 10.500
Total Department of Agriculture
Department of Defense Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through Army Naval Research
Educational Partnership Program with Minority Serving Institutions
Total Department of Defense

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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10.001
10.025
10.202
10.443
10.856
10.216

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

10.216

R000036

10.500

N/A

10.500

5152-DSU-USDA-2628

12.431

SG-16-016

-

312
26,936
14,903
(24,769)
(3)
28,183

2,400

56
28,239
1,369,876

2,400
2,400

1,832
1,371,708
1,417,326

-

1,103
1,103

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Federal CFDA
Number

Passed Through
Grantor's Number

Department of Education Direct Programs:
Higher Education - Institutional Aid
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education
Subtotal of Department of Education Direct Programs

84.031
84.116

N/A
N/A

Department of Education Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the State of Delaware
Special Education Program - Grants to States
Subtotal of Department of Education Pass-Through Programs
Total Department of Education

84.027

MOU DSU & DOE

93.243

93.243

Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Department of Health and Human Services Direct Program:
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Department of Health and Human Services Pass-Through Programs From:
Passed Through the SAMHSA
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Subtotal CFDA # 93.243

Passed to
Subrecipients

$

(10)

$

3,499,663
622,463
4,122,126

4,825
4,825
4,126,951

N/A

-

3,587

HBCUCFE.6_17/18

-

2,602
6,189

18,227

5,551,569

$

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

15,827
15,827

15,827

Total Other Programs:
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS:

Total Federal
Expenditures

944,494

$

67,877,141

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Delaware State University (the University) under programs of the
federal government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Therefore, some information presented in this Schedule may differ from amounts
presented in the preparation of the financial statements. Because the Schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of Delaware State University, it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of
Delaware State University.
For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contracts, and similar
agreements entered into directly between the University and agencies or departments of the
federal government, and all subawards to the University by nonfederal organizations
pursuant to federal grants, contracts, and similar agreements.

NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
The University has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 3

FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the University processed the following amount of new
loans under the Federal Direct Lending Loan Program.
Federal CFDA
Number
84.268

Cluster/Program Title
Federal Direct Loan Program

Federal
Expenditures
$ 39,636,936

The University is responsible only for the performance of certain administrative duties with
respect to the Federal Direct Loan Program. Accordingly, the value of these outstanding
loans is not reflected in the University’s financial statements
NOTE 4

FACILITIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE COST ALLOWANCE
Facilities and administrative costs applicable to the University’s sponsored research grants
were charged to programs based on predetermined rates. The rate was 46% for on-campus
research for the year ended June 30, 2018. The University had no off-campus research
activities for the year ended June 30, 2018.
(11)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

I.

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
•
•

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

X

yes

no

X

yes

no

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

yes

X

no

yes

X

no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
•
•

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)?

X

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Part 200 of the Uniform Guidance?

yes

no

Unmodifed
X

yes

no

Identification of major federal programs:
Program
Student Financial Aid Cluster
Research and Development Cluster
Cooperative Extension Service

CFDA #
Various
Various
10.500

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000
yes

(12)

X

no

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS
2018-001 – Financial Reporting
Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Criteria:
Internal controls including are critical to ensure accurate financial reporting. These would
include, but are not limited to, reconciling statement of net position accounts monthly, a formal
process of procedures and internal controls to ensure timely and accurate year-end financial
statements and related notes and providing supporting audit documentation that reconciles to
the trial balance under audit on a timely basis.
Condition:
The financial statement audit was scheduled to begin in August of 2018 and conclude in
September 2018. At the start of scheduled audit fieldwork the University was not ready for audit.
Draft financial statements had not been prepared and various sub-ledgers and schedules
supporting the trial balance under audit were not available. As a result audit fieldwork continued
through December 2018. During that time over 30 journal entries were prepared and posted to
the trial balance received for the year-end audit.
Cause:
Various statement of net position accounts are not reconciled throughout the course of the fiscal
year. There is no formal policies and procedures to ensure a timely fiscal year end close
process. This caused various reconciliation issues in completing a draft of the University’s
financial statements and reconciliation of the trial balance under audit to the management
prepared draft financial statements.
Effect:
The potential effects of the above matters are that interim and year-end financial information
may contain material errors and may not be produced on a timely basis. As a result, users of
this financial information could make decisions based on financial results that may not be
complete and accurate.
Repeat Finding:
Yes.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
2018-001 – Financial Reporting (Continued)
Recommendation:
We recommend that management perform an assessment of the current controls, processes
and personnel within the accounting department and make changes and additions where
needed to facilitate timely and accurate financial reporting.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
2018-002 – Cash Reconciliations
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Criteria:
The University’s internal controls must be able to prevent or detect a material misstatement in
the financial statements. Internal controls are critical to ensure accurate financial reporting.
Condition:
During our audit procedures surrounding cash it was noted that not all cash accounts were
reconciled at the start of the audit. As a result management performed an analysis and journal
entries were made to correct cash balances within the Banner system. The bank reconciliations
also contained reconciling items related to unrecorded activity. The net of all the bank
reconciliations contained an immaterial unreconciled difference.
Cause:
The University’s process did not include a timely completion of all cash reconciliation.
Effect
Cash reconciliations are an important control activity to detect errors and abnormalities within
the University’s bank activity. The potential effect of not preparing cash reconciliations timely
and accurately could result in material errors not being detected.
Repeat Finding:
Yes.
Recommendation:
We recommend that cash reconciliations be completed, and reviewed, no later than a month
after the period being reconciled. We also recommend that any adjustments noted as a result of
the reconciliation process be recorded timely to Banner, and that any old outstanding items be
investigated and addressed on timely basis.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
2018-003 – Continuing Disclosure Requirements
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Criteria:
The University’s processes and internal controls must be able to produce year-end financial
statements on a timely basis.
Condition:
Due to delays in the audit process the University did not meet their continuing disclosure
deadline related to outstanding public debt, and as a result, are not in compliance with the
continuing disclosure agreements.
Cause:
The University was not able to meet the deadline due to delays in closing the University’s
financial records on a timely basis.
Effect
Failure to comply with the University’s continuing disclosure requirement obligations could result
in potential fines, remedial actions, disclosure in future official statements, and other
consequences.
Repeat Finding:
Yes.
Recommendation:
We recommend that management perform an assessment of the current controls, processes
and personnel within the accounting department and make changes and additions where
needed to facilitate timely and accurate financial reporting.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
2018-004 – Accounts Payable
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Criteria:
The University’s internal controls must be able to prevent or detect a material misstatement in
the financial statements. Internal controls are critical to ensure accurate financial reporting.
Condition:
CLA noted the accounts payable detail sub-ledger contained stale items dating back to 1998.
The listing also contains approximately $467,000 of debit balances.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
2018-004 – Accounts Payable (Continued)
Cause:
Lack of policies and procedures related to review of the accounts payable sub-ledger,
investigation of debit balances and stale dated payable balances and correcting journal entries.
Effect
Accounts payable incorrectly reduced by debit balances.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend that management perform an assessment of the current controls, processes
and procedures related to the accounts payable financial cycle.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
2018-005 – Grants Receivable
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Criteria:
The University’s internal controls must be able to prevent or detect a material misstatement in
the financial statements. Internal controls are critical to ensure accurate financial reporting.
Condition:
During testing of grants receivable, two items tested that were identified as being over two years
outstanding. While documentation was available to support the existence of the balances,
management had not assessed the collectability. As a result, management reviewed all grants
receivable balances, and determined that an allowance for doubtful accounts was required to be
recorded.
Cause:
Lack of policies and procedures related to review of the grant accounts receivable sub-ledger,
including follow-up on stale outstanding balances that had not been received.
Effect
Overstatement of grants accounts receivable.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
2018-005 – Grants Receivable (Continued)
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend that management perform an assessment of the current controls, processes
and procedures related to the grant accounts receivable financial cycle.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
2018-006 – Accrued Payroll
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Criteria:
The University’s internal controls must be able to prevent or detect a material misstatement in
the financial statements. Internal controls are critical to ensure accurate financial reporting.
Condition:
The unadjusted trial balance did not contain a payroll accrual for accrued payroll related to
employees who work a portion of the fiscal year and are paid over the entire fiscal year.
Cause:
Lack of policies and procedures related to review of accrued payroll.
Effect
Understatement of accrued payroll.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend that management perform an assessment of the current controls, processes
and procedures related to the payroll cycle.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
2018-007 – Student Accounts Receivable
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Criteria:
The University’s internal controls must be able to prevent or detect a material misstatement in
the financial statements. Internal controls are critical to ensure accurate financial reporting.
Condition:
Per discussions with management and review of year-end student receivable accounts,
management did not closely manage the collections of its accounts receivable which resulted in
an increase in the receivable balance.
Cause:
Established collection policies were not closely followed or monitored.
Effect
Reduced collections in the current fiscal year which resulted in an increase in gross student
receivables and related allowance for bad debt accounts.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend that management perform an assessment of the current controls, processes
and procedures related to the collection of student receivables.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
2018-008 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Special Tests and Provisions – Return of Title IV
Funds
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education
Federal Program Title: Student Financial Aid Cluster
Compliance Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions – Return of Title IV Funds
CFDA Number: 84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268, and 84.379
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
Returns of Title IV funds are required to be deposited or transferred into the SFA account or
electronic fund transfers initiated to ED or the appropriate FFEL lender as soon as possible, but no
later than 45 days after the date the institution determines that the student withdrew. Returns by
check are late if the check is issued more than 45 days after the institution determined the student
withdrew or the date on the canceled check shows the check was endorsed more than 60 days
after the date the institution determined that the student withdrew (34 CFR section 668.173(b)).
Condition and Context:
During the testing of return of Title IV (R2T4) returns, it was noted that for four of eight refunds
tested, the return of Title IV funds was made later than 45 days after the date the institution
determined that the student withdrew. The sample was statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
N/A
Cause:
Controls surrounding the timely return of Title IV funds were not operating properly.
Effect:
The University did not comply with the 45 day deadline for 4 Title IV returns.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend the University review the policies and procedures around the timely return of Title
IV funding to ensure the 45 day deadline is met.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2018-009 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Other Procedures – Outstanding Refund Checks
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education
Federal Program Title: Student Financial Aid Cluster
Compliance Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions – Outstanding Refund Checks
CFDA Number: 84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268, and 84.379
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
The Code of Federal Regulations, 34 CFR 668.164(l), requires the University to return to the
Department of Education any Title IV funds, except FWS program funds, that were unsuccessfully
disbursed to the student or parent.
Condition and Context:
During the testing of student refund check reconciliations, it was noted that 9 student refund checks
were not returned to the Department of Education within the 240 day deadline. The sample was
statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
Questioned costs below the $25,000 reporting threshold.
Cause:
The University’s cash reconciliation procedures did not identify the checks as having to be returned
within the 240 day requirement.
Effect:
The University could owe funding to the Department of Education due to delays in returning student
refund checks.
Repeat Finding:
Yes.
Recommendation:
We recommend the University review policies and procedures around outstanding student refund
checks to ensure the checks are returned to the Department of Education prior to the 240 day
deadline.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2018-010 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Special Tests and Provisions – Return of Title IV
Funds
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education
Federal Program Title: Student Financial Aid Cluster
Compliance Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions – Return of Title IV Funds
CFDA Number: 84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268, and 84.379
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
When a recipient of Title IV grant or loan assistance withdraws from an institution during a payment
period or period of enrollment in which the recipient began attendance, the institution must
determine the amount of Title IV aid earned by the student as of the student’s withdrawal date. If
the total amount of Title IV assistance earned by the student is less than the amount that was
disbursed to the student or on his or her behalf as of the date of the institution’s determination that
the student withdrew, the difference must be returned to the Title IV programs as outlined in this
section and no additional disbursements may be made to the student for the payment period or
period of enrollment. (34 CFR sections 668.22(a)(1) through (a)(5)).
Condition and Context:
During the testing of return of Title IV (R2T4) calculations, it was noted that for two of eight
calculations tested, the amount calculated to be returned for the first exception of $0 was not
correct and should have been approximately $1,600. The amount calculated to be returned for the
second exception of $474 was not correct and should have been approximately $990. The sample
was statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
Questioned costs below the $25,000 reporting threshold.
Cause:
University controls did not detect the error in the calculations.
Effect:
University was required to return a portion of Title IV funds, this return was not made.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend the University review the policies and procedures around the calculation of Return
of Title IV funding to ensure the correct amounts are returned.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2018-011 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Eligibility
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education
Federal Program Title: Student Financial Aid Cluster
Compliance Requirement: Eligibility
CFDA Number: 84.063
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
Each year, based on the maximum Pell grant established by Congress, ED provides to
institutions Payment and Disbursement Schedules for determining Pell awards
(https://ifap.ed.gov/dpcletters/GEN1619.html). The Payment or Disbursement Schedule provides
the maximum annual amount a student would receive for a full academic year for a given
enrollment status, EFC and COA. The Payment Schedule is used to determine the annual award
for a full-time student. There are separate Disbursement Schedules for three-quarter time, halftime, and less-than-half-time students. All of the Schedules, however, are based on the COA of a
full-time student for a full academic year.
Condition and Context:
During the testing of Pell grant disbursements, it was noted that for one student out of a sample of
40, full-time status was incorrectly used in determining the Pell grant amount when the student
tested was three-quarter status. The sample was statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
Questioned costs below the $25,000 reporting threshold.
Cause:
In determining the amount of the Pell grant, a summer session that was not eligible for financial aid
was included in the calculation.
Effect:
Over award of the Pell grant.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend the University review the policies and procedures around the calculation of Pell
grants awarded.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2018-012 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Special Tests and Provisions – Enrollment
Reporting
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Education
Federal Program Title: Student Financial Aid Cluster
Compliance Requirement: Special Tests and Provisions – Enrollment Reporting
CFDA Number: 84.063 and 84.268
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
Under the Pell grant and ED loan programs, institutions must complete and return within 15 days
the Enrollment Reporting roster file [formerly the Student Status Confirmation Report (SSCR)]
placed in their Student Aid Internet Gateway (SAIG) (OMB No. 1845-0002) mailboxes sent by ED
via NSLDS (OMB No. 1845-0035). The institution determines how often it receives the Enrollment
Reporting roster file with the default set at a minimum of every 60 days. Once received, the
institution must update for changes in student status, report the date the enrollment status was
effective, enter the new anticipated completion date, and submit the changes electronically through
the batch method or the NSLDS website (FPL, 34 CFR section 674.19; Pell, 34 CFR section
690.83(b)(2); FFEL, 34 CFR section 682.610; Direct Loan, 34 CFR section 685.309).
Condition and Context:
During the testing of enrollment status submissions, it was noted that for one student out of a
sample of 40, a status change was not reported within the required timeframe. The sample was
statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
N/A
Cause:
The status change submission was not sent to the NSLDS within the required timeframe.
Effect:
Student status change was reported late.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend the University review the policies and procedures around ensuring student status
changes are reported to the NSLDS within the required timeframe.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2018-013 – Cooperative Extension Services – Reporting
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Federal Program Title: Cooperative Extension Services
Compliance Requirement: Reporting
CFDA Number: 10.500
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
Expenditures of federal awards in the University’s accounting records should be reconciled timely to
the expenditures presented within the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA).
Condition and Context:
During the testing of expenses appearing of the SEFA for the period 7/1/17 – 6/30/18,
4 transactions out of 68 tested were related to expenses incurred in the prior fiscal year. The
sample was statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
N/A
Cause:
Allowable expenses from the 2017 fiscal year were not appropriately included on the SEFA for the
period ended June 30, 2017.
Effect:
The current year SEFA includes expenses that were incurred in the 2017 fiscal year.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the University review and revise their current procedures in place and provide
training to employees within the grant and finance functions related to the grant reconciliation and
recording process in order to ensure expenses are reflected in the correct fiscal year.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2018-014 – Research and Development Cluster – Reporting
Federal Agency: Various
Federal program Title: Research and Development Cluster
Compliance Requirement: Reporting
CFDA Number: Various
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
Expenditures of federal awards in the University’s accounting records should be reconciled timely to
the expenditures presented within the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA).
Condition and Context:
During the testing of expenses appearing of the SEFA for the period 7/1/17 – 6/30/18,
6 transactions out of 40 tested were related to expenses incurred in the prior fiscal year. The
sample was statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
N/A
Cause:
Allowable expenses from the 2017 fiscal year were not appropriately included on the SEFA for the
period ended June 30, 2017.
Effect:
The current year SEFA includes expenses that were incurred in the 2017 fiscal year.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the University review and revise their current procedures in place and provide
training to employees within the grant and finance functions related to the grant reconciliation and
recording process in order to ensure expenses are reflected in the correct fiscal year.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2018-015 – Research and Development Cluster – Reporting
Federal Agency: Various
Federal Program Title: Research and Development Cluster
Compliance Requirement: Reporting
CFDA Number: Various
Award Period: 7/1/2017 – 6/30/2018
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over
Compliance
Criteria:
Expenditures of federal awards in the University’s accounting records should be reconciled timely to
the expenditures presented within the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA).
Condition and Context:
During the testing of period of performance cutoff, we identified 3 expenses out of a sample of
15 appearing on the SEFA for the period 7/1/17 – 6/30/18 that were not charged to a federal grant.
The sample was statistically valid.
Questioned Costs:
N/A
Cause:
The University correctly identified expenditures incurred out of the period of the performance of the
grant agreement and did not charge the federal program for these expenditures, however they were
incorrectly included on the SEFA.
Effect:
The current year SEFA includes expenses that were not federal expenditures. The errors are
clearly inconsequential.
Repeat Finding:
No.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the University review and revise their current procedures in place and provide
training to employees within the grant and finance functions related to the grant reconciliation and
recording process in order to ensure only federal expenditures are included on the SEFA.
Views of responsible officials:
See attached corrective action plan.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
DIVISION OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Delaware State University respectfully submits the following summary schedule of prior audit findings for the
year ended June 30, 2018.
Audit period: July 01, 2017 – June 30, 2018
The findings from the prior audit’s schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed below. The findings
are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the prior year.

FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
2017-001 – Financial Reporting
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Condition:
The financial statement audit was scheduled to begin in August of 2017 and conclude in September 2017.
At the start of scheduled audit fieldwork the University was not ready for audit. Draft financial statements
had not been prepared, certain cash accounts were not reconciled and various sub-ledgers and schedules
supporting the trial balance under audit were not available. As a result audit fieldwork continued through
December 2017. During that time over 40 journal entries were prepared and posted to the trial balance
received for the year-end audit.
Status:
See current year finding 2018-001.
Reason for finding’s recurrence: Although the Office of Business and Finance have put various
monthly reconciliations in place to allow for timely General Ledger period closing in order for us to run
reliable financial reports on a quarterly basis. We experienced a change in key personnel which was a
major setback, and therefore resulted in a recurrence of the finding.
Corrective Action: See current year corrective action plan.
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2017-002 – Pension Accounting
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Condition:
Currently the University does not have a process in place to account for and make appropriate journal entries
related to its participation in a cost sharing multiple employer pension plan
Status:
Corrected.
2017-003 – Net Position Reconciliation
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Condition:
During the audit of the financial statements for fiscal year 2017, management made topside journal entries
outside of the Banner system. As a result of not capturing all of these entries, beginning net position did
not reconcile to ending net position on the prior year financial statements.
Status:
Corrected.
2017-004 – Cash Reconciliations
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Condition:
During our audit procedures surrounding cash it was noted that not all cash accounts were reconciled at
the start of the audit. As a result management performed an analysis and journal entries were made to
correct cash balances within the Banner system. The bank reconciliations also contained reconciling items
related to unrecorded activity. The net of all the bank reconciliations contained an immaterial unreconciled
difference.
Status:
See current year finding 2018-002.
Reason for finding’s recurrence: Although Delaware State University accounting department received
training from an Ellucian consultant on our ERP system Banner. We experienced a change in key
personnel which was a major setback, and therefore resulted in a recurrence of the finding.
Corrective Action: See current year corrective action plan.
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2017-005 – Continuing Disclosure Requirements
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Condition:
Due to delays in the audit process the University did not meet their continuing disclosure deadline related
to outstanding public debt, and as a result, are not in compliance with the continuing disclosure
agreements.
Status:
See current year finding 2018-003.
Reason for finding’s recurrence: Delaware State University has received guidance from an Ellucian
consultant to add GASB 68 functionality to the financial reporting module to reduce some top-sided
entries. The design of the module is to allow for journal entries to be entered for reporting purposes
which do not affect the underlining accounting records such as elimination entries generated for indirect
costs etc. We experienced a change in key personnel which affected the implementation of the new
process, and therefore resulted in a recurrence of the finding.
Corrective Action: See current year corrective action plan.
FINDINGS – FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS
2017-006 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Special Tests and Provisions – Return of Title IV Funds
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance

Condition and Context:
During the testing of return of Title IV (R2T4) funding, it was noted that students who withdrew during the
Spring term with a R2T4 calculation (3 of 21 students tested) were incorrectly calculated due to only 7
days being excluded for spring break, instead of 9 days. This resulted in a total of
110 days in the term being used for calculations, instead of 108 days. This error resulted in the University
returning more funds to the Department of Education than required.
Status:
Corrected.
2017-007 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Special Tests and Provisions – Return of Title IV Funds
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance
Condition and Context:
During the testing of return of Title IV (R2T4) funding, it was noted that two students of the 21 tested that
withdrew during the academic year did not have a R2T4 calculation performed by the University. The first
student attended greater than 60% of the term; therefore, no refund would have been required. The second
student would have required a total of $5,494 in Federal Title IV aid returned to the Department of
Education.
Status:
Corrected.
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2017-008 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Eligibility – Award Limits
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance
Condition and Context:
During the testing of student aid eligibility, it was noted that two students of the 40 tested were awarded
Subsidized Stafford Loans below the maximum amount that they were eligible for based on grade level
and dependency status. There was no documentation in the student’s files as to why the maximum amount
was not awarded.
Status:
Corrected.
2017-009 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Eligibility – Credit Balance Refunds
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance
Condition and Context:
During the testing of student aid eligibility, it was noted that 14 students of the 40 tested had FSA credit
balances not refunded to the student prior to the 14-day deadline.
Status:
Corrected.
2017-010 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Other Procedures – Outstanding Refund Checks
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance
Condition and Context:
During the testing of student refund check reconciliations, it was noted that three student refund checks
were not returned to the Department of Education within the 240 day deadline.
Status:
See current year finding 2018-009.
Reason for finding’s recurrence: The University has implemented an additional review process,
completed at the time of the monthly bank reconciliation, to include a review of any outstanding student
refund check over 180 days. Any check deemed stale dated and generated by Title IV funds, will be
cancelled and returned to the Department of Education. Additionally, the University collaborated with
Bank Mobile to process direct deposits, debit cards and refund checks to the students based on the
student’s selection of how they want to receive their refund and information provided by the student. The
direct deposit and debit card methods provide secure access to their funds in an expeditious manner.
We experienced a change in management which affected the implementation of the new procedure, and
therefore resulted in a recurrence of the finding.
Corrective Action: See current year corrective action plan.
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2017-011 – Student Financial Aid Cluster – Other Procedures – Eligibility and Certification Approval
Report Update
Type of Finding: Other Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance
Condition and Context:
During the testing of the Eligibility and Certification Approval Report (ECAR), it was noted that a change
to the HEA Program Administrator was not reported within the 10 day requirement.
Status:
Corrected.

If the Department of Education has any questions regarding this schedule, please call Robert Schrof at (302)
857-6200.

